SACYR, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 AND 2015
{Expressed in thousands of euros)

SACYR, S.A.

Financial Statements and Management Repont
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Sacyr, S.A.
Financial Statements and Management 2016. 1 of 79



SACYR, S.A,
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015
{Expressed in thousands of euros)

Confents

BALANCE SHEET .. 3
INCOME STATEMENT . U
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY O Y.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS.. PP -
01. Company activity... P PO VDU -
02. Basis of presentation of’rhe fnoncml sfq’remenis O [ ¢
03. Distribution profit... U P |
04. Accounting poI|C|es cmd measuremem bases N B
05. Intangible assets... eee e e eee hes s eesres s aes sas heseh ves sas e nen ran e aeearn ven e nees 23
0é. Property, plant cnd eqmpmen’r PRI . |
07. Financial instruments.. e ee e 26
08. Investments in Group companies, cssocm’res cnd jom’rly con'rro!led en’rmes... - 121
09. Non-current assets held for sale and liabilities associated with these assefs..........o. oo eno.. 39
10. Cash and cash equUIVAIENTs.... ... oot it et s e e e e s e e et e e venern s seaaen ven e ee 40
11. Equity and shareholders' equﬂy P 4 |
12. Provisions, contingent liabilities, gucronfees cmd deposﬂs U OO 17
13. Grants, donations or gifts QNG 1eQACIEs.... ... cen i e e e e e e e e e eee veneenen A
14, Risk management policy... T .
15. Public administrations and ’rax ma’r‘rers AU [
146. Income and expenses.. PP |
17. Related par’rytronscchons ond bclanc:es er e . - 1
18. Remuneration and other benefits of dlreciors cnd senior moncgemen’r ............................... 62
19. Environmental information.... ... ... coe oo i e e e e et e s e e s e e et vt e eeeneeeen G5
20. Other information............ OO 7.
21. Events after the reporhng perlod N . ¥
22. Additional note for English ’rronslc’rlon... VY . 7
MANAGEMENT REPORT ... cet i it it eee see ee eet et s trevvn ran seeaen s teaaee ven ens ane sensrn sesssnnee venvenennnn OB

Sacyr, S.A,
Financial Statements and Management 2016. 2 of 79



Independent Audit Report

SACYR, 5.A.

Financial Statements and Management Report
for the year ended

December 31, 2016



LY Eorci o oung, S0 el €32 365 4%6
- C/ Primundo Ferniances Vibvarda, &5 Fax.:915 727 300
] 23002 0005 A dvTh|

Building a better
working world

Translation of a report and financial statements originally issued in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails (See Note 22)

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Shareholders of SACYR, S.A.:

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SACYR, S.A., which comprise
the balance sheet at December 31, 2016, the income statement, the statement of changes
in equity, the cash flow statement, and the notes thereto for the year then ended.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying financial statements
so that they give a true and fair view of the equity and financial position and the results of
SACYR, S.A., in accordance with the requlatory framework for financial information
applicable to the Entity in Spain, identified in Note 2 to the accompanying financial
statements, and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibiiity

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with prevailing audit regulations in
Spain. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit requires performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in alf
material respects, of the equity and financial position of SACYR, S.A. at December 31,
2016, and its results and cash flow for the year then ended, in accordance with the
applicable regulatory framework for financial information in Spain, and specifically the
accounting principles and criteria contained therein.

Report on other legal and requlatory requirements

The accompanying 2016 management report contains such explanations as the directors
consider appropriate concerning the situation of the Company, the evolution of its business
and other matters; however, it is not an integral part of the financial statements. We have
checked that the accounting information included in the aforementioned management
report agrees with the 2016 financial statements. Our work as auditors is limited to
verifying the management report in accordance with the scope mentioned in this paragraph,
and does not include the review of information other than that obtained from the
Company's accounting records,

ERNST & YOUNG, S.L.

(Signed on the original In Spanish)

Francisco V. Fernandez Romero
April 7, 2017






SACYR, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 AND 2015
(Expressed in thousands of euros)

HMobes fo the
finanaial

slojements

-CURRENT ASSETS [iSRiaicrnd ZvTaEET

. !ntangible assets & 1.320

1 Computer software 1,320

Property, clant and equioment 6 4,145

1 Land and buildings 155

2 Plant and other iterns of property. plant and equioment 3,990

Non-curent investments in Group companies and associates 8 and 17 2,765,344

1 Equity instruments 2,140,011

2 Leans to companies 544,282

3 Other financiol assels 81,083

¥, Non-curent financial investments 7 17.048

1 Eguity instraments 125

2 Loans to tnird parties 16,634

3 Other financial assets 289

v. Defered tax asset: 18 184,498

8) CURRENT ASSETS o,/ i T AR, - 814,008
MNon-current assets held for sale ?

Y. Trade and otner receivables 309,885

1. Trade receivables from sales and services 7 20

2. Receivoble from Group companies and associotes 7and 17 62,228

3. Ofnerreceivaoles 7 185,684

4, Employee receivaoles 7 k4|

5. Current tax assets 15 3,143

&.  Oiner accounts receivable from public autnorities 18 56,717

. Current investments in Grouo combanies and associates 8 and 17 191,804

1. Loans to comopanies 191,804

iv. Cument finanzial investments 7 B,471

1. Equity instruments 3,324

2. oans to companies 145

3. Otner financlal assets 5,000

V., Cureni prepayments and accrued income -

VI, Casn and cash equivalents 10 5,845
1. Cash 5,848

L FFLHE T
1,547
1.547

3.406
158
3,251

2,442,998
1,486.374
873,543
81,083

17.027
5
16,714
308

200,167

78039
316,840

314,905
n
132,172
130,035
g2
15.549
36,905

135,614
135,514

5.061
24
35

5.000

54

7.857
7.857

TOTAL ASSETS I 5,470,565 [l 3,443 446

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an infegral part of the balance sheet.

Sacyr, S.A.
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SACYR, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 AND 2015
{Expressed in thousands of euros)

|
EQUITY AND LLABILITIES
|

) EGTTY Tizivass ks
A-1} SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,719,484 1,388,335
Share capital 1t 517,43 517,431

1, ssved snare capifal 517,421 517,431

Il.  $hare premium 1 17,183

M. Reserves 1 B55.384 93,183

1. cegal and statutory reserves 103,486 42,418

2, Other reserves 741,880 30.735
V. Treasury shares 1) {#1,519] §52,346)

V. Profit/{Loss) for the year 3 331.893 809,504
V. inferim dividend . {26,727)

Vil Otner equity instrements 29,152 44,315

A-2! VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS = 276,489
I Avaflable-for-sale financial astets 278,485

1) NOM CRBENT LAABILTES ssuis a2y
. Non-cumrent provisions i2 1,428 1,429
1, QOfhner orovisiors 1,429 1,42%

1. Non-curent payables 7 451,623 355,839
1. Debt nsiruments and other marketaple securities 259,657 254,365

2. 8ank oomowings 173,021 114,932

3. Otner financial habilities 8,945 15,542

Il Mon-curent payaples 1o Group companies and associates 7 83,851 7.029
123447 1,38 344

. iiapilities associated with non-current assets neld for sale L 102,000 102,000
. Curtent provisions 12 93,633 114,302
. Cument poyables ? 115,495 261,424
1. Debtinstruments and other marketable securities 41,923 204,736

2. Bank borowings £5.599 25,192

3. Ctiner financiol ianilitiex 17.973 31,496

. Curent payables fo Groun companies and associates 17 593.019 269,238
VY. Trade and other payobles 330,029 632,380
1. Suppliers. Group companies and associates 7 and t7 242,946 555,888

2. Oftner payables 7 74,615 64,769

3. Remuneration payaple o emplovees 7 3,182 B47

4. Otner payables to public authorities 8 9,286 10.876

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILHES ] 3,443 464

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the balance sheet.

Sacyr, S.A.
Financiol Statements and Management 2016. 4 of 79



SACYR, S.A.
INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015
(Expressed in thousands of euros)

A}~ CONTINUING GRERATICNE

Notes to the
financial

skatements

1. Revenue 1é 56,222
a! Rendering of services 56,222
2. Other operating income BS
a} Non-core and other cument operafing income &5
3. Saff costs 1 120,868
a) Wages, salories and similar expenses 18,289}
o} Emplayse wellare costs {2,579
4. Other operating expenses {43,538)
q) Extemal services 14 {42.938)
D} Taxas other than income ax {2a4)
cj Otner ooerating costs (354]
5. Depreciation and amortisation excense Sand & {1.813}
& Allocdfion to profit or loss of grants related to non-financial noncurrent assets and otner grants 13 356
7. Overorovisons 12 455
A1) NETOMRATING BROAT 3TINERIR . Teen
8. Finance incoma 80,304
a} from investments in equity instruments 51,783
- Group companies and associates 17 51,783
o] From marketable securifies ond other financial instruments 28,521
- Group companies and assocliates 17 27,926
- Third parties 7 415
9. Finance cosls 136,340}
al On dabis 1o Group companies and associates 17 {3,823}
b} On debts to third parties 7 {32,517;
10,  Exchange differences 248
11, Impairment losses and gaing/{losses) on disposal of financial instruments 13,929
aj imoairment and losses 7ond & 13.927
i} Gaing/{lostes] on disposals and oiher
A2} HNANCIAL PROMT/(LO33) L
iA3)’ PROHT/(LOJS) BEPORE TAX ' T SN ¢ A
12, income tam 5 4321
AA) PROFTALOSY) FOR THE YEAR FROA COMNTIND 'INGOPEMI’!ON: 53408
m i =
13.  Profit for the year rom discontinued operafions, net of Jax Yond 15 278,490

A5} PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of the income statement.

80,131
40,131

1,440
1,440

{17,818
{14,873
{2,945

173,352
{73,058!
{294)
i3

1.417)

{30.000)
TEEATY)

78,436
35578
35,570
42,858
38,987

3871

761,278)
15,701]
{55,677)

1132
1685,691)

1605,597]
é

fair st
[7e8.737)
{37,047}

iz

1.577.268

Sacyr, S.A.
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SACYR, S.A.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

(Expressed in thousands of euros)

A) STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

A) PROFIT PER INCOME STATEMENT 331,873 B9,
Income ond expense recognised directly in equily
1, From measurement of financial instruments 809,99%
1. Avagilable-forsale financial assets - £0%,999
il. Grants, donations and legacies received 356
. Tax eftect {89}
) TOTAL INGGHE AND EXPENSE RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY £ 109,959
Amounis fransferred fo income statement
V. From measurement of financial instruments {2786.490) 331,510
1. Avgilable-ior-sale financial assets {275.490) {331,510}
V. Grants, donations and lagacies received {356} -
V1. Tox effect 89 .
) FOTAL TRANSFERS T0 THE INCOME STATEMENT enzm e
Sacyr, S.A.

Financial Statements and Management 2016. 6 of 79
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SACYR, S.A.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

{Expressed in thousands of euros‘

1A) CASH HOWS {USED IN/GENEEATED BY OPEEATING ACTTVITES T

1. Profit/{loss) betore tax for the year from continuing operalions 49,082 (728,17}
2. Prefit/({lon) bafore tax for the year from discenfinved operations 278,490 1,573,882
Ad]usiments to prefit/{less): (338,869} {332.464)
a; Depreciation and amorlisalion expensa 1813 1817
b; Imparment loses {13,928 585,697
€} Changes i provisions {495, 30,000
d; Variacidn de provisiones de operaciones interrumpidos 162,000
®! Govemment grants released to ine income stalement {356;
i Gaine {losa) on derecognitiont and disposaks of assats - 16|
g Gains {lpses) on derecognitions and disposal- of financiat instuments {278,45C) {1,145,474)
h] Finamce Income {80,304} {78,438}
i] Fimance costs 36,340 61378
i] Finance cosft from discontinued operations 12092
k| Exshange differances (248} {1,132
1, Changes In werking eepital 26,088 (63,303}
a; “rade and other recelvable: 5020 [81.08Y)
b} Other cument omsets 54 51
t] frade and other payabies 30,024 128,623
o) Ofher cument liablfities (22,549 {54.914]
e] Other non-curant aswels and liabilities 12,826 {6,002
4. Other eash flows from operating activiites 19.738 520,374
a} ‘nterest paid {32,517 {55.877)
b} Dividends raceived 51,783 36,578
¢} Inferest received &15 542,300
d; Income tox refunded {paid) {143) 3871
e} Other payments [collactions| {5.678)
8. Cash flows used In operaling activities 37,594 1,792
5) €A PLOWS (116D N)/GERERATED Y INVETING AcTivmEs T, 1753
4. Payments for investments {344,459| (889,878}
a) Geoup companies and associales [¥38.704) [B87,854)
o Intangible cssels (357) {1.001)
) Property. pkant and equipment [1.957) {1.007)
o} Other financial astels 3.431) {8)
7. Proceeds from dispesals 316.B20 1 477,198
a| Oiher financiol assets 3
b} Non-curent amefs neld ior sale 14,640 1477180
8. Cosh flows from invesling activitles (27.417) 587,218
1] Casi WS FEOM FINANCING AcTruries
7. Proceads and payments relating o squily Instruments 742 [3.849)
a) Acquisition of own squity instruments {91,234
b} Disposal of own equity instruments 742 B7.385
10, ds from and payments on financlal liablity h 13074} 11,523,043}
a} ssue 230,574 84,344
1. Debt intirumenis and otner marketable securities 71,079 26,200
2, Bank pomowings 86,496 23225
3. Payaples to Group companies and associates 72,599 10,240
4, Otner payables 24,55¢
b} Refund and repmyment of (243,450 {1.607.307)
1. Debt instruments and otner marketable securities (218,600} .
2. Bonk borowings {448,507}
3. Paoyaples to Group companies and associates (4.930) {202.541;
4, Payables to Group companies and associates for disconlinued operations {955,508]
5. Other poyables {20,120} Fra k]
11. Payments for dividends and retums or cther egqully Insirumanis - {25727}
a; Dividends {25,727}
12. Cash flews from financing activities {12,334) {1.552,619;
‘;D}a'fm:l OF ENCHAHGE EATE FLUCTUATIONY ] 1132
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 7.857 22,234
Cash gnd cgsn equivalents at end of year 5.848 7BS7

Sacyr, S.A,
Financial Statements and Management 20164. 8 of 79



SACYR, 5.A.
NOTES TO THE 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Company activity

Sacyr, S.A. arose from the merger by absorption of the Sacyr, S.A. Group (absorbed company) by
Vallehermoso, $.A. {absorbing company) in 2003, as explained in the financigl statements for the yvear then
ending.

The Company's registered office is at Paseo de la Castellana, 83-85, and it is filed in the Madrid Mercantile
Register, volume 1884, folio 165, sheet M-33841, eniry 677, and its tax identification number is A-28013811.

Its company object is as follows:
d. The acquisition and construction of urban property for rent or sale.

b. The renovation of buildings for subsequent rent or sale.

c. The purchase and sale of land, building rights and urban development lots, as well as their
allocation, land transformation, development of urban infrastructure, division into lots,
subdivision, compensation, etc., and, in some cases, subsequent construction of buildings, with
involvement in the entire urban development process through to construction.

d. The administration, conservation, maintenance and, in general, all activities related to the
provision of urban facilities and services and the associated land, infrastructure, civil
engineering works and other urban faciliies provided for by local planning stipulations, either
on the Company's own behalf or for third parties, and the provision of architecture,
engineering and urban development services relating to the urban lots or their ownership.

e. The provision and sale of all types of services and supplies relating o communications, IT and
power distribution networks, as well as collaboration in the marketing and brokerage of
insurance, security services and transport services, either on the Company's own behalf or for
third parties.

f.  The management and administration of shopping centres, senior citizen homes and centres,
hotels and tourist and student accommodation.

g. The contracting, management and execution of all kinds of construction work in the broadest
sense, both public and private, including roads, water supply projects, railways, port facilities,
buildings, environmental projects and, in general, all activities related to construction.

h.  The acquisition, administration, management, development, operation through rental or any
other means, construction, purchase and sale of all types of properties, as well as the provision
of advisory services in any of the above activifies.

i. The development of all types of engineering and architectural projects, as well as the
management, oversight and advisory services on the execution of all types of construction
work.

j.  The acquisition, holding, exploitation, administration and sale of all kinds of marketable
securities on the Company's own behalf, except for those activities reserved by law, and
specifically by the Spanish Securities Market Act, for other types of enfities.

k. The management of public water supply, sewer systems and sewage works.
| The management of all types of concessions, subsidies and administrative permits for projects,
services and mixed ventures awarded to the Company by the central, regional, provincial

and local governments, and investment in the capital of companies responsible for such
concessions.

m. The operation of mines and quarries and the sale of the products extracted.

Sacyr, S.A.
Financial Statements and Management 2016, 9 of 79



SACYR, S.A.
NOTES TO THE 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n. The manufacture, purchase, sale, import, export and distribution of equipment, and the
installation of construction equipment and materials or other items for use in construction.

o. The acquisition, use in any form, sale, transfer and disposat of all types of intellectual property
and patents, and other kinds of industrial property.

p. The manufacture and sale of prefabricated and other products related to construction.

q. The management of Spanish and foreign subsidiaries and investees via a presence on their
goveming bodies. The strategic and administrative management of subsidiaries in Spain and
abroad, together, and the provision of legal, economic, accounting, personnel, budgeting,
financial, tax, marketing and IT consultancy services to these companies.

The Company may alsc carry out any of the activities comprised in its corporate purpose indirectly through
equity investments In other entities or companies with similar or identical comorate purposes.

Sacyr, $.A's ordinary business mainly comprises the activities of a shared services centre, i.e. management
and administration, basically of the Group companies, and commercial and recruitment tasks. Accordingly,
it has the technical and human resources required, together with the infrastructure relating to this fype of
activity. These activities are very different from the mere ownership of holdings in the capital of Group
companies. In addition to the foregoing, and solely to optimise its financial resources, the Company channels
the surpluses/cash deficits of certain Group companies. Under no circumstances, can it be considered that
such companies perform financial activities, since Group operafions are financed at each of the companies
at which they are performed and not from the Group's Parent. In this regard, and in order to better
understand the financial statements, the Company does not apply that stipulated in query 2, published in the
Official Bulletin of the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute 79/200%, "On the accounting classification in
the individual financial statements of the revenues and expenses of a holding company which applies the
Spanish General Accounting Plan{PGC 2007}, approved by Royal Decree1514/2007, of 16 November, and on
the determination of the revenues of this entity”.

The Company is the head of a group of subsidiaries and associates and prepares separote consolidated
financial statements. The Sacyr Group's consolidated financial statements for 2015 were prepared by the
directors @t their Board of Directors' meeting held on 31 March 2016. The consolidated financial statements
for 2015 were approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 16 June 2014, and filed at the
Madrid Mercantile Registry.

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements

a) Regulatory framework

The regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company consists of:

1. The Spanish Commercial Code and other company law.

2. The Spanish General Accounting Plan and its industry adaptations.

3. Statutory standards approved by the Spanish Institute of Accountants and Auditors {ICAC)
expanding on the General Accounting Plan and its complementary standards.

4. The remaining Spanish accounting regulations applicable.

b) Fair presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which were prepared from the Company's accounting records, are
presented in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework and, accordingly, present fairly
the Company's equity, financial position, the results of its operations and the changes in equity and cash
flows for the related year. These financial statements, which were prepared by the Company's directors, will
be submitted for approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, and it is considered that they
will be approved without any changes. The financial statements for 2015 were adopted by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting held on 16 June 2016.

Sacyr, S.A.
Financial Statements and Management 2016. 10 of 79



SACYR, S.A.
NOTES TO THE 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The figures included in the financial statements are in thousands of euros, unless otherwise indicated.

In view of the activities caried on by the Company, there is a working capital deficiency of 718,148 thousand
euros (601,013 thousand euros in 2015) as a result mainly of the short-term financing of subsidiaries.
Nonetheless, the Company's directors prepared the financial statements under the going-concem principle
of accounting, since this situation will not affect the Company's future development. There are several factors
that reduce the effects of this situation:

« New financing obtained on the basis of long-term business plans and the quality of the Group's
assets.

» The simple bond issue for 30 million euros and maturing in 2023.

« The Euro Commercial Paper promissory note issue programme for up to 300 milion euros and
maturing within one year

e Generation of cash flow from the Group's recurring activities.
« Sale of non-strategic assets in 2017.

» Debt re-financing maturing at shor-term. In this connection, in 2016, debt maturities amounting to
43.7 milion euros were rolled over, of which 38.7 million euros are multi-group facilities.

» Cument payables to Group companies and associates amount to 8359 milion euros, and the
Company expects this debt to be refinanced based on the Group's needs.

» Debt maturities for 2017 not associated with business areas and without any type of guarantee
amounted to 43.8 million euros.

* In addifion, financial institufions have already rolled over debt maturing up to the date of
authorisafion of these financial statements for issue. For remaining maturities in 2017, based on
negotiations with the financial institutions, the Company’s directors are convinced that the loans and
credit facilities will be renewed at long term.

Thanks to these factors, the Company considers that it is adapting rapidly to the market's current needs and
mitigating its liquidity risk and that this process will make it stronger.

c) Non-compulsory accounting policies applied

No non-compulsory accounting policies have been applied. Furthermore, the directors have prepared these
financial statements by taking into account all the mandatory accounting principles and standards with o
significant effect thereon. All mandatory accounting principles have been applied.

d} Critical issues regarding the measurement and estimation of uncertainties

In preparing the Company's financial statements, estimates were made by the directors based on past
experience and other factors considered to be reasonable based on current circumstances. These estimates
were used In order to measure the canying amount of assets and liabilities whose value is not easily
determined by means of other sources.

The main estimates performed relate to:
+ The assessment of potential impaimment losses on certqin assets.
* The useful life of property, piant and equipment and intangible assets.
» The recoverability of deferred tax assets.
¢ The calculation of provisions.

» The measurement of fair value, value in use and present value.
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The Company reviews these estimates on an ongoing basis. However, given the inherent uncertainty of such
estimates, there is a substantial risk of significant changes in the future value of these assets and ligkilities
should the assumptions, facts or circumstances on which these esfimates were based change significantly.
The key assumptions about the future and other significant data regarding the estimation of uncertainty at
the reporting date that carry a significant risk of causing material changes in the value of assets or liabilities in
the coming year are as follows:

impairment in the value of non-cumrent assets

The measurement of non-current assets, excluding financial assets, requires that estimates be made in order
to determine their recoverable value for the purpose of assessing possible impairment, particularly of goodwill
and infangible assets. To determine this recoverable value, the directors estimate the expected future cash
flows of assets or the cash-generating units of which they form part and use an appropriate discount rate to
calculate the current value of these cash flows {Notes 8 and 9).

Deferred tgx gsseils

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary differences deductible, tax loss camyforwards not yet
taken, to the extent that it is considered probable that the Company will have taxable profits in the future
against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised. In order to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
which can be recognised, the directors estimate the amounts of and dates on which taxable profits will be
obtained in the future and the reversal period for the taxable temporary differences (Note 15).

Provisions

The Company recognises provisions for confingencies, in accordance with the accounting policy indicated
in section 4 of these notes to the financial statements, The Company makes judgements and estimates
regarding the probability that the liabilities will occur, as well as the related amount. It recognises a provision
when the liability is considered probable and estimates the related cost.

Measurement of fair value, value in use and present value

Measurements of fair value, value in use and present value require the Group to calculate future cash flows
and make assumptions about the future values of these flows and the discount rates to apply. Estimates and
assumptions are based on past experience and other factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

e) Comparative information

Together with the figures for 2016, for comparison purposes, the Company presents the figures for 2015 for
each of the items in the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of
cash flows and notes to the financial statements, which were obtained by applying the Spanish General
Accounting Plan approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007, which was amended in 2016 by Royal Decree
602/2016, of 2 December, and with other corporate and commercial law in force. In accordance with that
set forth in Royal Decree 602/2016, these financial statements do not include comparative information with
regard to the amount paid for third-party liability insurance premiums for damages caused by acts or
omissions by directors in exercising their position {Note 17).

f) Grouping of items

The Company has not grouped together the items in the balance sheet, income statement, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows,

g) iems included under several line items

The Company has not recognised any items included under several line items.

h) Changes in accounting policies

In 2016, there were no significant changes in accounting policies as compared to the policies applied in 2015,
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i) Correction of errors

No material errors were detected in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements which gave
rise to the restatement of the amounts included in the 2015 financial statements.

3. Distribution of profit

The proposed distribution of prefit for 2016 that the Company's directors will submit for approval at the
General Shareholders' Meeting is as follows:

Basis of distibution I Py
Profit per income staternenti 337.893,445.9)

‘Allocation R ]
To voluntary reserves 331,8932,446.3

The distribution of profif for 2015 is shown in the statement of changes in equity.

Limitations on the distribution of dividends

The Company is required to fransfer 10% of profit for the vear to the legal reserve until the reserve reaches at
least 20% of share capital. The reserve cannot be distributed to shareholders unless it exceeds 20% of share
capital,

Once the legal or Company bylaw requirements are met, dividends may only be distributed against profit for
the year or against unresiricted reserves if the value of equity Is not lower than that of share capital or does
not fall below share capital as a result of this distribution. Accordingly, profit recognised directly in equity may
not be distrbuted either directly or indirectly. Where losses exist from previous years that reduce the
Company's equity to below the amount of share capital, profit must be allocated to offset these losses.

4. Accounting policies and measurement bases

The main accounting policies and measurement bases used by the Company in the preparation of the 2014
financial statements are as follows:

a) Intangible assets

Infangible assets are inffialy measured ot either acquisition or production cost. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost, less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment.

Production cost includes the costs of direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and the
reasonable portion of the costs indirecily allocable to the goods for the manufacturing or construction
period, including the repayment of research expenses when they have been capitalised, specifically related
management or administrative expenses, resulting shrinkage and obligations for dismantling arising from the
production of invenfories.

Intangible assets are amortised systematically based on the estimated useful life of the assets and their residual
value, The amorfisation methods and periods applied are reviewed ot the end of each vear, and if required,
prospectively adjusted. Al least at year-end, the assets are fested for signs of impaiment, and where required, the
recoverable amounts are estimated and the appropriate valuation adjustments are made,

Sacyr, $.A.
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With the entry into force of Royal Decree 802/2016, of 2 December, which amends the Spanish Generdl
Accounting Flan approved by Royal Decree 151472007, of 16 November, as of 1 January 2016, intangible assets

with an indefinite useful life disappear and begin to be amortised under the assumption, unless there is evidence
fo the conirary, that their useful life is fen years and that they will be recovered on a straightdine basis.

» Computer software

Computer software includes the costs incurred in relation to computer software acquired from third parties or
developed by the Company itself which meets the conditions indicated previously to be capitalised.
Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of four years.

e Research and development expenditure
The Company recognises research expenditure in the year in which it is incurred.

b) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at acquisition or production cost, and is subsequently
reduced by the related accumulated depreciation and by any impairment losses, recognised as indicated in
Note é.

Production cost includes the costs of direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and the
reasoncable perfion of the costs indirectly allocable io the goods for the manufacturing or construction
pericd, including the repayment of research expenses when they have been capitalised, specifically related
management or administrative expenses, resulting shrinkage and obligations for dismantling arising from the
production of inventories.

Upkeep and maintenance costs relating to property, plant and equipment are taken to the income
statement for the period in which they are incurred. Conversely, costs incured that increase capacity or
efficiency or extend the useful life of the assets are capitalised in the related assets.

For property, plant and equipment that takes more than a year to reach its required working conditfion,
capitalised costs include the financial expenses accrued prior to readying the asset for use, and include
amounts invoiced by suppliers or associated with borrowings or other third-party funding, specific or generdl,
directly attributable to the acquisition or manufacture of the asset.

In-house work on fixed assets is recorded ot the accumulated cost (extemal costs plus in-house costs,
determined on the basis of warehouse materials consumed in-house, direct labour expenses incurred and
general manufacturing costs calculated using absorption rates similar to those used for inventory valuation).

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment by the straightHine method, applying annual
depreciation rates calculated on the basis of the years of estimated useful life of the respective assets, as follows:

% depreciochon

Lond and budings b
Fiani 0%
whochinery 0%
Fumiture 0%
Transpori equipment 20%
Daoio processing equipmenit 25%

At the end of each year, the residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and if
applicable, prospectively adjusted.

Sacyr, S.A.
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c¢) Impairment of non-financial assets

At least at year-end, the Company assesses whether there are any signs that any non-current assets or,

where appropriate, any cash-generating unit may be impaired. Should any signs exist, their recoverable
amounts are estimated.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. When the camying amount is
higher than the recoverable amount an impairment loss is incured. Value in use is the present value of future
expected cash flows, using risk-free market interest rates, adjusted by specific risks associated with the assets.
For assets that do not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating units to which the asset belongs.

Impaiment losses and their reversal are charged to profit or loss. Impairment losses are reversed when the
circumstances which gave rise to them cease to exist, except those relating to goodwill. The reversal of
impairment |osses is limited to the carrying amount of the assets which would have been posted had the
related impaiment loss not been previously recognised.

d) Financial instruments

d.1}  Fnancigal gssets

The financial assets held by the Company are classified as follows:
d.1.1) Classification and measurement
e [loans and receivables:

These are financial assets arising from the sale of goods or the rendering of services in the normal course
of business, or financial assets which did not arise from the ordinary course of business but are not equity
instruments or derivatives, have fixed or determinable payments and are not traded on an active
market.

Such assets are initially measured at fair value. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, this is the
transaction price, which is equivalent to the fair value of the consideration given plus directly atiributable
transaction costs.

Subsequently, they are measured ot thelr amortised cost.

For those trade accounts receivable maturing at under one year and which do not have a contractual
interest rate, and the advances and loans to employees, the dividends receivable and the payments
required on equity instruments, whose amount is expected to be received at short term, are measured at
their nominal amount, both in terms of the initial measurement and the subsequent measurement, when
the effect of not discounting cash flows is not material.

¢ Held-to-maturity investments:

Debt securifies with fixed maturity and determinable payments that are fraded in an active market,
which the Company has expressed its intent and capacity to hold until their maturity date.

Such assets are initially measured at fair value. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, this is the
transaction price, which is equivalent to the fair value of the consideration given plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequently, they are measured at their amortised cost.

Sacyr, S.A.
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o Financial assets held for lrading:

Assets acguired in order 1o be disposed of at short term or those which form part of a portfolio with
respect fo which evidence exists regarding recent procedures in this regard. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments which are not financial guarantee agreements (for example, collateral)
or hedge instrumenits.

They are initially measured at fair value which, unless proven otherwise, is the transaction price, which is
equivalent to the fair value of the consideration received. Directly atiributable transaction costs will be
recognised in profit and loss for the year. The initial measurement of equity instruments will Include the
amount of the preferential subscription rights and similar which, where approprigte, are acquired.

Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, recognising the gains and losses from the changes
in this fair value in the income statement, without deducting fransaction costs,

e Discontinued operations:

The Company classifies the business line which it decides to discontinue and dispose of as a discontinued
operafion. Revenue and expenses from this activily were included at a single amount, after having
deducted the tax effect, under “Profit/{Loss) for the year from discontinued operations, net of taxes”.

+ Investments in the equiily of Group companies, joinfly contfrolled enfities and associates:

Group companies are considered to be entities linked to the Company by a relationship of control, and
associates to be those over which the Company exercises significant influence. In addition, the category
of jointly conirolled entfities includes companies over which, by virtue of an arangement, joint control is
exercised with one or more partners.

Such companies are initially measured at fair value which, except evidence to the contrary, will be the
transaction price, which will be equal to the fair value of the consideration delivered, plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except nen-monetary contributions to a Group company in which the
purpose is a business, whose conversion is measured at the carrying amount of the items comprising the
business. The amount of the preferential subscription rights and similar which, where appropriate, are
acguired will form part of the initial measurement

They are subsequently measured af cost, less any accumulated valuation adjustments for impairment.
Such losses are calculated as the difference between the camying amount and the recoverable
amount, where the latter is the higher of fqir value less costs to sell and the present value of the future
cash flows from the investment. In the absence of any better evidence of the recoverable amount, the
equity of the investee is taken into account, comected by any unrealised gains at the date of
measurement (including any goodwill).

d.1.2) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when it expires or when the rights fo the cash flows from the
financial asset have been transfemed, together with substantially all the risks and rewards incidentat to
ownership of the financial asset, such as in the case of the outright sale of assels, factoring of frade
receivables in which the Company does not retain any credit or interest rate risk, sales of financial assets
under an agreement to repurchase them at their fair value, or the securitisation of financial assets in which
the transferor does not retain any subordinated debit, provide any type of guarantee or assume any other
type of risk.

However, the Company does not derecognise financial assets which if sells while retaining substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, and instead recognises a financial liability equal to the consideration
received, such as discounted bills, with-recourse factoring, sales of financial assefs with a repurchase
agreement at a fixed price or at the selling price plus interest and securitisations of financial assets whereby
the transferor retains subordinated financing or other types of guarantees which substantially absorb all the
expected losses.
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d.1.3] Interest and dividends from financial assets

Interest and dividends from financial assets accrued subsequent to acquisition date are recognised as
income in the income statement. The interest received from financial assets must be recognised using the
effective interest rate method and dividends, when the right to receive them is declared.

For these purposes, the amount of explicit unmatured interest accrued at that moment is recognised
separately in the initial measurement of financial assets, by maturity date, together with the amount of the
dividends agreed upon by the competent body up uniil the acquisition date. Explicit interest refers to that
obtained by applying the contract interest rate to the financial instrument,

Likewise, when the dividends distributed unequivocally arise from results generaied prior to the acquisition
date since higher amounts than the profit generated by the investee since the acguisition have been
distributed, they are not recognised as income, rather they reduce the canying amount of the investment.

d.l.4) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amount of the financial assets is adjusted by the Company with @ charge to the income
statement when there is objective evidence of an impairment 1oss.

In order to determine the impairment losses on the financial assets, the Company evaluates the possible
losses arising both from the individual assets and from the groups of assets with similar risk characteristics.

s Debt instruments

Cbjective evidence is considered to exist of the impaiment of debt instrumenis, deemed to be
receivables, loans and debt insfruments when, after their inifial recognition, an event occurs which has
an adverse impact on future estimated cash fiows,

The Company considers impaired assets {doubtful assefs) to be those debt instruments for which
objective evidence of impairment exists, which mainly make reference to the existence of unpaid debts,
breaches and refinancing, and to the existence of data which evidences the possibility of not recovering
all the future flows agreed or of a delay in their collection.

In the case of financial assets measured at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment losses is the
saume qs the difference between their carrying amount and the present amount of the future cash flows
deemed to be generated, discounted at the effective interest rate existing at the moment of initial
recognition of the asset. For the financial assets subject to a variable interest rate, the effective interest
rate at year-end is used. For trade and other receivables, the Company considers doubtful assets to be
those past-due balances for which no assurance exists as to their collection, and the balances of
companies that have applied for insolvency proceedings. The Company considers for the listed
instruments the market value thereof as a substitute for the cument value of the future cash flows,
provided that they are sufficiently reliable.

For "Financial assets available-for-sale”, when objective evidence exists that a decrease in fair value is
due to their impairment, the unreadlised losses recognised under “"Equity - Valuation adjustments” are
recognised in the income statement.

The reversal of impairment is recognised as income in the income statement up to the limit of the
carrying amount of the financial asset which weuld have been recorded at the reversal date had the
impairment not been recognised.

s Equity instruments

Objective evidence exists that equity insiruments have become impdired when, after their initial
recognition, an event or a combination of events occur which mean that the carrying amount thereof
cannot be recovered due to a prolonged or significant decrease in their fair value.

In the case of equity instruments measured at fair value and included in the portfolio of "Financial assets
available for sale”, the impairment loss is calculated as the difference between its acquisition cost and its
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fair value less the impairment losses previously recognised. Unrealised losses recognised in equity under
"Valuation adjustments” are recognised immediately in the income statement when it is determined that
the decline in fdir value s due fo Impdirment, If subsequently all or part of the impairment losses are
recovered, the amount thereof is recognised in equity under “"Valuation adjustments™.

In the case of equity Instruments valued af cost, included in the category of "Financial assets available for
sale”, and of the investments in the equity of Group companies, jointly conirolled entities and associates,
the impaiment is calculated as the difference between their canying amount and the recoverable
amount, which is the higher amount between their reasonable value less the costs of sales and the
cument value of the future cash flows arising from the investment. Except in the case of better evidence,
in the estimate of impairment, the equity of the investee is taken into consideration, adjusted by the
unrediised gains existing at the measurement date, These losses are recognised in the income statement
directly net of the equity instrument.

The reversal of valuation adjustments for impairment is recognised in the income statement, up 1o the
limit of the carrying amount of the investment at the reversal date had the impairment not been
recognised for the investments in the equity of Group companies, jointly controlled entifies and
associates; however for the financial assets avdilable for sale which are measured at cost it is not possible
to reverse the value adjustments recognised in previous years.

d.2}  Fnancial liabilities
The financial liakilities held by the Company are classified as follows:

d.2.1}) Classification and measurement

s Accounts payable:

Accounts payable include the Company's tfrade payables that arose from the purchase of goods and
services in the normal course of its business, or non-tfrade payables that cannot be considered to be
derivative financial instruments.

Accounts payable are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, adjusted for the
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequently, they are measured at their amortised cost.

However, the frade accounts payable maturing at under one year and which do not have a
contractual interest rate, and the payments required by third parties on holdings, whose amount is
expected to be paid at short term, are measured at their nominal value, when the effect of not
discounting cash flows is not material.

d.2.2) Write-off or derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability expires.

When an existing debt instument is replaced by another on substantially different terms, the original financial
liability is derecognised and the new financial liability is recognised. Financidl liabilities whose contractual
terms are substantially modified are clso recognised.

The difference between the camying amount of the financial liability {or of the part of it which has been
derecognised) and the consideration given, plus any attrlbutable transaction costs, which also includes any
new asset tfransferred other than cash or any liability assumed, is recognised in the income statement in the
year in which it arises.

When existing debt insfrumenits are exchanged for other debt instruments on terms that are not substantially
different, the original financial liability is not derecognised, and the commissions paid are recognised as an
adjustment to thelr camying amount. The new amortised cost of G financial liability is defermined by applying
the effective interest rate, which equates the camying amount of the financial liability on the modification
date with the cash flows to be paid as per the new tems.
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d.3] Equilyinstruments

An equity instrument represents a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recegnised in equity at the proceeds received, net of issue
costs,

Treasury shares acquired by the Company during the year are recognised at the value of the consideration
delivered in exchange and are deducted directly from equity. Any gains or losses on the purchase, sale, issue
or retirement of own eguity instruments are recognised directly in equity and not in the income statement.

e) Cash and cash equivalents

This heading includes cash, bank current accounts and the deposits and reverse repurchase agreements
(REPOs) which comply with the following conditions:

+ They can be converted into cash.

* They mature within three months from the acquisition date.

* They are not subject to a significant risk of fluctuations in value,

« They form part of the Company's usual cash management policy.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents do not include the bank
overdrafts payable on demand that form part of the Company's cash management.

f]  Foreign currency transactions

The Company's funclional curency is the Euro. Therefore, transactions in currencies other than the Euro are
deemed to be foreign cumrency transactions and are recognised by applying the exchange rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction,

At the end of the reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumrencies are
transiated atf the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. The resulling goins or losses are recognised
directly in profit or 1oss in the year in which they arise.

Non-monetary items measured ot historical cost are franslated to euros af the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction.

Nor-monetary items measured of fair value are franslated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date on which fair value is determined. Exchange rates are recognised directly in equity if the non-menetary
item is measured against equity and in the income statement if it is measured directly against profit or loss for
the year.

g) Income tax

Income tax expense {income) comprises the current tax expense [cument tax income) and the deferred tax
expense [defemred tax income).

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable {recoverable) as a result of the income tax seftlemenis for
a period. Tax credits and other tax benefits applied to the taxable profit, excluding withholdings,
prepayments and tax loss camryforwards effectively offset during the year, are deducted from the current tax.

Deferred tax expense or income corresponds to the recognition and derecognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities. These include the temporary differences, measured at the amount expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases, and
tax loss and tax credit camyforwards. These amounts are recognised by applying to the temporary difference
or tax credit the tax rate that is expected to apply when the asset is redlised or the liability is settled.
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On 28 November 2014, Corporate Income Tax Law 27/2014 was published, which established an applicable
tax rate for 2015 of 28% and for 2016 and subsequent years of 25% in its transitional provision thirty-four i) and
its article 29, respectively. The Company adjusted its assets and liabiiifies for temporary differences (Note 15).

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except for those arising from the
initial recognition of goodwill or of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that does not affect neither
accounting profit {loss) nor taxable profit (tax loss) and is not a business combination, and except for those
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in which the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.,

Deferred tax ossets are only recognised to the extent that it is considered probable that the Tax Group will
have taxable profits in the future against which the defemred tox assets can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and llabilities arising from fransactions charged or credited directly to equity are also
recognised with a balancing entry in equity.

The defemred tax assets recognised are reassessed at the end of each reporting pericd and the appropriate
adjustments are made where there are doubts as fo their future recoverability. Also, unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised fo the extent that it has
become probable that they will be recoverad through future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilties are measured at the tax rates expected at the date of reversal in
accordance with the law in force, and according to the manner in which it is rationally expected that the
defemred tax asset or liability will be recovered or paid.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted and are classified as non-current assets or figbilities,
respectively.

Sacyr, S.A. and ifs investees which comply with R.D.L. 4/2004 of 5§ March, approving the consolidated
Corporate Income Tax Law opted, via an agreement of the respective Board of Directors of each company,
to avail themselves of the consolidated tax regime, making the compulsory notification to the tax authorities
and forming the consolidated Tax Group 20/02 whose Parent is Sacyr, S.A, with Tax ID No. A-28013811.

Since the Company does not comply with that stipulated in the Corporate Income Tax Law 43/1995, it opted

to avail itself of the consolidated tax regime, pursuant to a Board of Directors agreement, together with the
remaining companies forming the consolidated tax group.

h) Income and expenses

Revenue is only recognised when it is likely that the Company wil receive income or refumns on the
fransaction and the amount of the revenues and of the costs incured or to be incured can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or to be received, deducting
the discounts, price reductions and other similar items which may be granted by the Company and, where
appropriate, the interest included in the nominal amount of the loans. Indirect taxes on operations which
may be passed on 1o third parties do not form part of income.

Revenue from sales is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods sold have
been transferred to the buyer, and the Company neither confinues to manage the goods nor retains
effective control over them.

Income from services rendered is recognised by considering the degree of completion of the service at the
balance sheet date, provided that the fransaction result can be estimated reliably.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective interest method and dividend income Ts
recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established. Interest and dividends from
financial assets accrued subsequent to acquisition are recognised as income In the income statement.

Revenue and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis, i.e., when the actual flow of the related goods
and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises.
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i) Provisions and contingencies
When preparing the financial statements, the Company’s directors make a distinction between:

e Provisions: credit balances covering present obligations ¢t the balance sheet date arising from past
events which could give rise to an outflow of resources for the Company, which is considered likely to occur
but is uncertain as to its amount and/or fiming.

+ Contingent liabilities: possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the
control of the Company.

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a current obligation {legally,
contractually or due to an implicit or underlying obligation} arising as a result of past events, with respect to
which it is probable that a quantifiable outflow of resources will be required to setfle the obligations.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, but rather are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements, to the extent that they are not considered to be remote.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the best possible estimate of the amount required to settle or
fransfer the obligation, taking into account the information available on the event and its consequences,
recording the adjustments which arise as a result of the update of these provisions as a finance cost as it
accrues. Provisions of one year or less with a negligible financial impact are not discounted.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cument best estimate of the
ligbility.

The compensation fo be received from a third party when an obligation is settled Is recognised as an asset,
provided it is certain that reimbursement will be received, unless the risk has been confractually externalised
so that the Company is not obliged to setfle, in which case, the reimbursement wili be taken into
consideration in estimating the amount of any provisions.

The policy on contingencies and expenses s to make provisions for the estimated amount of probable or
certain liabilities arising from legal proceedings in progress, compensation or obligations pending, and for
guarantees and other similar commitments. This provision is recorded when the contingency or obligation
giving rise to the indemnity or payment arises.

) Environmental assets and liabilities

Environmental assets are considered to be those used by the Company on an ongoing basis, the main aim of
which is to minimise environmental impact and to protect and improve the environment, including the
reduction or elimination of future pollution.

By their very nature, the Company's business acfivities do not have a significant environmental impact.

k}  Grants, donations or gifts and legacies
The Company adopts the following criteria to recognise grants, donations or gifts and legacies received:

s Non-refundable grants, donations or gifts and legacies: They are measured at the fair value of the
amount or the gsset granted, depending on whether they have a monetary nature or otherwise:
Nen-refundable grants, donations or gifts and legacies are recognised as income directly in equity,
and are taken to profit and loss in ling with the depreciation and amoertisation charge recognised in
the period for the subsidised assets or, where appropriate, when they are disposed of or valuation
adjustments for impairment are recorded, except for those received from shareholders or owners
which are recognised directly in shareholders' equity and do not constitute income.

s Refundable grants: Refundable grants are recognised as liabilities.
o Grants related to income: They are credifed to resulls when they are granted, unless they are used fo

finance the operating loss of future years, in which case they are atiributed in those years. If grants are
received fo finance specific expenses, they are allocated to income s the related expenses are incured.
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[}  Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are caried out and recognised at fair value in line with the criterfig and
methods set out in section é of the Conceptual Framework for the Spanish General Accounting Plan and the
measurement policies described above, except for the following transactions:

e Non-monetary confributions of a business to a Group company were measured at the carrying
amount of the assets and ligbilities composing the business contributed.

N mergers, spin-offs and the non-monetary contribution of a business relating to a direct or indirect
subsidiary, the items acquired are measured at the comesponding amount, after the fransaction is
completed, in the consolidated financial statements. If the transaction is with another Group
company, which is not a direct or indirect subsidiary, the items acquired are measured at their
carrying amounts before the fransaction in the separate financial statements. Any differences arising
were taken to reserves.

The prices of transactions with related parties are determined on an appropriate basis, and the Company's
directors consider that there is no risk they could generate material tax liabilities.

m} Non-cumrent assets held for sale and liabilities associated with these assets

The Company classifies those assets whose camying amount will be recovered mainly through their sale
instead of through their continued use under "Non-current assets classified as held for sale” when the
following requirements are met (Note 9):

* They are available in their curent conditions for immediate sale, subject to the usual terms for their sale.

* Their sale is highly probable.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their canmying amount and their fair
value less the costs to sell, except deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee remuneration and
financial assets which do not relate fo investments In Group companies, associates and jointly controlled
entities medasured in accordance with their specific rules. These assets are not amortised and, when required,
the appropriate impairment loss allowances are recognised to ensure that their camying amount does not
exceed their fair value less the costs to sell.

The disposable groups of assets classified as held for sale are measured using the same rutes indicated in the
previous paragraph. Once valued, the group of assets is jointly measured at the lower of the carrying amounit
and the fair value of the assets less the costs to sell.

Associated liabilities are classified under "Financial liabilities associated with non-cumrent assets classified as
held for sale”.

Income and expenses generated by non-cumrent assets classified as held for sale, which do not meet the
requirements to be classified as discontinued operations, are recognised in the related income statement
heading by type.

n) Discontinved operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been sold or disposed of in any other
way or has been classified as held for sale and, among other conditions, represents a line of business or
significant area that can be considered to be separate from the rest.

For such fransactions, the Company presents the profit or loss affer tax of this discontinued operation under a
single heading called "Profit/{loss) for the year from discontinued operations net of tax" in the income
statement, together with the gain or loss after tax from its recognition at fair value less costs to sell or from the
sale or disposal of the items constituting the discontinued operation.

in addition, when operations are classified as discontinued, the Company recognises under the aforementioned
heading the amount of the previous year relating o operations that have been discontinued at the reporting
date of the financial statements.
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o} Curent and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities are classified in the balance sheet as current and nen-cument. For these purposes, assets
and liabilities are classified as curent when they are associated with the Company's normal operating cycle
and they are expected to be sold, used, realised or settled during such cycle, together with those whose
maturity, disposal or realisation is expected within one year, those classified as held for trading, except those
arising at long term, and cash and cash equivalents. The remaining are classified as non-cumrent,

5. Intangible assets

The details of and changes in this balance sheet heading for 2015 and 2016 are as follows:

Fisposals
Balonce al addition :I:-r?l‘-:;hiﬁrm - Balance al
IS ARTA R s it o T 240 01A
31122014 P 32rmms

Costs

Computer sofiware 17,619 1.0 8} 18,622

Tolal cosk AL 1011 (s 86

Amartisation:

Comouter software {16,635} {448) 8 (17.,075)

Tokal omorfisation {%77 P (esss) (448} . e FRTES (17.079)

Total impairment 2 8 z

— e —

Dizposals; -

Enl.asrc-% al Addilions dacodenniiioniar Eul.ur',-__r_z al
31/12/2018 N 3171272015

Cost:

Computer soffware 18,622 357 - 18,979

Total cost T arirY 1s,422 i a7 B 18,97%

Arnarisation:

Computer software 17.075) (584] - [17.659)

etal amoriisation Z, (17078 . (584) : (17.457)

Hotal impairment 1 F%

———

All the Company's intangible assets are used in business operations relating to its activities in Spain,

At year-end 2015 and 2016, the Company was still using the following fully amortised intangible assets:

Description Carrying amount [grosz

Computer software V4,598 16,323
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6. Property, plant and equipment

The detdils of and changes in this balance sheet heading for 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Cost:

Land and buildings

Plant

Machinary

Furniture

Transport equiprment

Data processing equipment
Ciner ifems of property, plant and
equipment

Tolal cost
Amortisation:

Buildings

Plant

Machinery

Furniture

Transport equipment

Data processing equipment

Cther items of property, plant and
equipment

Total impairment

Balance af
311272014

183
5,429
870
4,577
12
10,618
H

22,700

iz7)
[4,425)
{692)
4,020)
3]
9,948}
4]

(%)

I YT

Additions

799

m
14y
{565)

{54!
{2301

$318;
S

L

(1,149

Disposals,
derecognition
or write-downs

Balance at

11122015

183
8,637
870
4,577
12
10,874
11

23,144

{28)
{4,997
748}
{£.250)
{12)
i9.721)
{10]

(17.758)

m _ 3,4:35
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Disposols,

Balance at e Balance al
; derecognition ;
31/12/2015 T : 31/12:2014
ar write-downs
Cosl:
Land ond buildings 183 . . 183
Flant 6,637 . . 6,637
Machinery 870 499 - 1.36%
Furniture 4,577 73 - 4,656
Transport equipment 12 - - 12
Data processing equipment 10,874 1,394 - 12,264
Other itemns of property, plant and 1 : - n
equipment
Tatal cost 23164 e : 251
Amortisation:
Buildings 128 - . 28]
Plant {4,991) (53] . (5.044)
Machinery {748) {503) - {1,249}
Fumifure {4,280} {143} : {4.413)
Transoort equioment {12} . - 12}
Data processing equioment (9.721) (510} - {10,231}
Ciner items of property, plant and (10} . . 10
equipment
[Totai amoriisation (18.758) (1.229) e {20.727)
Tohi nnpqirmeni

_m_-m

The additions in disposals of data processing equipment correspond to equipment renewals made during the
year.

All the Company's property, plant and equipment is used in business operations relating to its activities in
Spain.

The Company owns property whose camying amount from the separate depreciation of land and buildings
at year-end 2015 and 2016 is as follows:

property s

Land 134 136
Buildings 1% 19

I T I
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At year-end 2015 and 2016, the Company was still using the following fully depreciated property, plant and

equipment:
Description Carrying amount (gross)
=

Plant 2,574 1,278
Machinery 357 327
Fumiture 2,215 2,877
Transport eguipment 12 12
Cata processing eguioment 2,338 P, 145
Otner items of property, plant and 8 g
equipment

At year-end 2016, the Company did not own any assets used as guarantees or as purchase cormnmitments.

The Company has taken out insurance policies fo reasonably cover its non-current assets, whose safekeeping
is charged to its directors.

7. Financial instruments

a) Financial assets

a.l) Categories of financial assets

The breakdown of financial assets, except investments in Group companies, associates and jointly controlled
entities, detdiled In Notes 8 and 17, at 31 December 2015, is as follows:

Equity Loans,

derivalives
and other

instrumeants
Category

Non-cument financial assets:

Loans and receivables - 16,714 14,774
Other financial assets 5 308 313
Totaf non-current financial assefs 5 17,022 17,027

Cument financial assets:

Loan: and receivables - 262,370 262,370

Available-for-zale financial assets 2¢ - 26

- Megsured at fair value 26 . 28
Ctner financial assets - 5,035 L felct

'Infﬂl current fmunclﬂl as:e'ls 267 A0S 247 A3

e ———
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These amounts are broken down in the balance sheet at 31 December 2015 as follows:

Loans,

e Ura e derivatives
Balance sheef items 7 and other

2015

Equity

Won-cument financial assets

Non-current financial invesiments ] 17,022 17,027

- Equity instrurnents 5 - 8

- Loaons to third parties - 16.714 16.714

- Other financia! assets - 308 308

[Total non-current financicl aasets ) 17,02 1707
Current financial assts:

Curment financial investments 24 5,035 5,041

- Equily instruments 26 5 24

- Leans to third porties . 35 35

- Other financial assets . 5,000 5,000

Trade and other receivables . 262,370 262,370

Total qurrent financial assels 24 247,405 247,431

n

The breakdown of financial assets, except investiments in Group companies, associates and jointly controlled
entilies, detailed in Notes 8 and 17, at 31 December 2014, is as follows

Loans,

=AY derivalives

Category insfruments

and olher

Non-current financial assets:

Loans and receivables . 16,634 16.634
Other financial assets 125 289 414
Total non-current financial assets 125 16.923 17.048

Current financiat assets:

Loans and receivables - 248.025 248,025
Available-forsale financial assets 3.324 - 3.326

- Measured at fair value 3.326 3.326
Other financial assets - 5.145 5.145
|'I'oiul current financial assets 3 326' - 253.170 256 496

T 273 544
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These amounts are broken down in the balance sheet at 31 December 2014 as follows:

Loans,

e enis derivalives
Balance sheet items a = and ather

Equity

Non-current financial assets

MNon-curent financial investment: 125 16,923 17,045

- Equity instruments 128 3 125

- Loans to third parties - 14,4634 16,634

- Other financial assels - 269 289
Cument financial assets:

Current financiol investments 3,324 5,145 8,471

- Equity instruments 3,326 - 3,326

- Loans o third parfies - 145 145

- Other financic! assels - 5,000 5,000

Trade and other receivables - 248,025 248,025

‘Total current financial assels 8,324 258,170 254,496

ot~ = Sl e s

"Non-cumrent financial assets - Loans fo third parties” relates to non-current loans granted to other companies
at an annual interest rate of 3-month Euribor + 2%. “Non-current financial assets - Other financial assets”
relates to long-term guarantees and deposits given.

e Loans and receivables

The detail of the financial assets classified in this category at 31 December 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Non-cumrent:

Loans to third parties 16,634 16,714
Total non-current loans and recelvables 16434 16,714
Cument:

Loans to third parties - -
Guarantees given and pre-payments - -

Trade and other receivaple: 248,025 242 370
Trade receivable: from sales and services 20 71
Receivable from Group companies and associates 62,228 132,172
Other receivables 185,686 130,035
Employee receivables 91 92

Cue frorm sharsholdsrs for capital zalls -
Concession amangernents, collaction rights

ot st loans and recsivabies Ll e

Toial leans and receivablds

Current loans and receivables relate mainly to trade balances with Group companies [Note 17).
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« Other financial assets:

The detdil of the financial assets classified in this category at 31 Decemier 2015 and 2016 is as follows:

2016 2015

Non-currant:

Guarantees given 289 308
Othaer financial assefs 128 B
Total other non-current financial assets a4 313
Cument:

Guarantess given 5.000 5.000
Ctner financicl assets 145 38
Total ofher current financial assets 5,145 5035

The 5,000 thousand euros in short-term guarantees are deposited in the French Depository.

a.2] Classification by maturity

The detail, by maturity, of the items forming part of current and non-current financial assets at 31 December

20151s as follows:
202} and
beyond
262,370 277,084

.oans and receivaples 16714

Available-orsale financial assets o4 . - 26
Other financial assats 5,035 n3 - - - = 4,348
I I T B

The detail, by maturity, of the items forming part of cumrent and non-current financial assets at 31 December
20141s as follows:

~oans and receivables
Availople-for-sale fingncial assets

Otner financial auets

a.3) Assets fransferred and accepted as a guaranfee

In 2015 and 2014, the Company did not provide any assets s coliateral.
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b} Einancial ligbilities

b.1) Categories of financial liabilities

The breakdown of financial liabilities at 31 December 2015, excluding payables to Group companies
detailed in Note 17, is as follows:

Debt

instruments |
Baonk Sl Detlvatives T
ono CineEr (==}
bomowings and ohhers e

marketable
securnties

Mon-curent financial iabilities:

Accounts payacle
Otner financial liabilities

‘Tokal non-current tinameiat liak lities

Cument financial abilities

Accounts payable
Other financial liabilities

Iotal cwrenl ﬁnunelul Ilubmﬂu

These amounts are broken down in the balonce sheet at 31 December 2015 ¢s follows:

Debt

inslruments T
Balance sheefilams Bank e Derivatives
bBorrowings and others

marketable
securilies

Non-cumrent financial liabilities:

MNon-cument payables 114,722 254 343 15,542 384 837
- Dept insiruments and other marketaole securities - 254,355 - 254,355
- Bank porrowings 114,932 . - 118,932
- Other financial liabilities - 15,542 15,542
Tokal non-current financial hiabilifies 116,32 264348 15,542 324,837
Curmrent financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables - : 621,504 621.604
Cumrent payacles: 25172 204,736 31,4%% 241,424
- Dept inttrument: and other marketaple securities 204,736 . 204,735
- Bank porowings 25,192 - - 25,192
- Other financial liabilities - - 31,494 A.496
Tokat curreni financial liabilities 25 197 204,736 53,000 582 928
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The breckdown of financial liabilities at 31 December 2016, excluding payables to Group companies
detailed in Note 17, is as follows:

et

instruments :
Bank bt Derivatives
- and ather ;
bomowings and oihern

morkelaoble
securities

2074

Mon-current financial iapilities:

Accounts payable 173,021 269,657 442,678
Ciner fnancial abililies . . 8,945 8,945
[Total non-current financiat fiabilifies SR ey | TERD avasT syas AT asisas
Current financial liabilities

Accounts payaole 55.59% 43,923 320,743 418,285
Other financial liapilities . 17,973 17,973
Yool curren! finoncial liabilifies BT sean E 0 4,2

These amounts are broken down in the balance sheet at 31 December 2016 as follows:

De bt

instruments s i
Salance sheel ilems Banl Derivalives

bomowings:

and other
markelable
securhies

and cthers

Non-curent financial liopilifies:

Non-curent payables 173,021 247,457 &,945 451,423

- Debt instruments and other marketaole securifies - 269,657 - 249,557

- Bank borowings 173,021 - 173,021

- Other financial liabilities . - 8,945

T 249,467 4842
Curent financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables . - 320,743 320,743

Curent payables: 5,579 41,928 17,973 118,495

- Deot instruments and other marketaple securifies . 41,923 41,923

- Bank norowings 85,599 - - 55,599

- Other financial liabilities . 17,973 17.973

(Tefai current financlal liabiffes I7F ss8m 4z 33871 435,280
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» Accounts payable

The breakdown of this heading at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2016 | 2015 |

Non-curent:
Bank borrowings 172,521 114,932
Cept ingtrument: and other marketable :ecuritie: 269,657 254,345
Total non-current accounts payable 442,378 371,297
Current:
Debt instruments and other marketable securitias 41,922 204,726
Bank borowings 55,599 25,792
Trade payables 320,743 £21,504
Suppliers, Group companies and asscciates (Note 17 242,746 555,868
Other payables 74,518 64,769
Remuneration payable to employees 3,18z 847
‘Tolal current accounts payable 418,245 851,432

Totgl

In relation to Law 15/2010, of 5 July, the information relating to the average period of payment to suppliers for
2015 and 2014, in acceordance with the stipulations of the sole additional provision of the Resolution of 29
January 2016, issued by the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute (ICAC), on disclosures to be included in
the notes to the financial statements, is as follows:

Average period for payment to suppliers $5.20 25 19
Ratio of tranzactions pending payment 132 7§ 59 41

Amount {euros) Amount (eures)

Tolal paymenis made 65,420,270 34,663,534

Total payments nuis’tunding

57,074,337 4,427,526

These amounts do not include payments made to suppliers that are Group companies and associates,
suppliers of fixed assets or finance lease creditors. The transactions and balances outstanding with the Group
companies and associates at the end of 2015 and 2016 are detailed in Note 17.
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The nominal value of the main bank borowings and other financial liabiliies at year-end 2015 and 2016 is as

follows:

Deschphion Malurily dole

CAIXABANK 040972018 92,423
BANCC PCFULAR 23/06:2017 11,440
BANKIA 22/0112018 £5.000
BANKIA 310752007 13,205
BANKIA 20127 5000
SABADELL F0f06/2017 7346
UNICAJA 30/09207 16,750
LABORAL KUTXA 13/0572024 21,313
OTHER MISCELLANECUS 22,603 23,944

At year-end, the Company held policies close to expiry under negotiation which it considers will be renewed.

Unpaid accrued inferest included in “Current bank borrowings™ at year-end 2015 and 2014 amounts to 757
thousand euros and 733 thousand euros, respectively.

At year-end 2015 and 2016, the Company held payables with a security in rem on morttgages or pledges on
portfolio assets for a total of 28,400 thousand euros and 27,100 thousand euros, respectively.

Bank borrowings only reflect the portion drawn down. At year-end 2015 and 20164, the Company had
available credit facilities whose undrawn amount totals 131,171 thousand euros and 19,212 thousand eures,
respectively.

In 2016, the Company increased its gross bank debt by 87 million euros.

On 7 May 2015, the Company issued non-convertible dentures with a par value of 26,200 thousand euros, at
an annual nominal interest rate of 4.50%, maturing at five years.

On 12 April 2011, the Company issued bonds convertible into shares with a par value of 200,000 thousand
euros, af a fixed interest rate of 6.5%, maturing at five years. The Company fully redeemed this issue in 2014,

On 23 November 2016, the Company launched a simple bond issue in the amount of 30 million euros, at an
annual fixed interest rate of 4.75%, maturing at seven vears.

In 2016, the Company launched the Euro Commercial Paper promissory note issue programme for up to 300
million euros and maturing within one year
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¢ Other financial liakilities

The breakdown of this heading af 31 December 2015 and 2014 1s @s follows:

Non-cument:

Other financial liabilities 8,945 18,542
Total non-current 8,945 15,542
Cumrent:

Other financial liabilities 17,973 31,495
Tolal corrent 17,978 3458

The non~current financlal liobilities relate to subsidised loans for R&D activities. Current liabilities relate mainly
to loans to third parties and employee deposit balances.

b.2) Classification by maturity

The detail, by nominal maturity, of the items forming part of cumrent and non-current financial liabilities at 31

December 201515 as follows:
an17 [y 2021 and
265 55,884 f

Accounis payabie 851,432 22 235,748 22,151
Other financial iabikities al.485 15,542

The detail, by nominal maturity, of the items forming part of current and non-cumrent financial liabilities at 31
December 2016 is as follows:

Accounts oayaole
GOiher financial liabilites

c) Additional disclosures

c.l) Information relating to the income statement and to the statement of changes in
equity

Finance income and costs adllocated to the income statement calculated in accordance with the effective
interest method amounted to 3,871 thousand euros and 55,677 thousand euros in 2015, In 2014 finance
income amounted to é15 thousand euros, while finance costs were 32,517 thousand euros.

Impairment losses on financial instruments recognised in the income statement in 2016 and 2015 was -685,6%7
thousand euros and 13,929 thousand euros, respectively,

c.2] Otherinformation

- At year-end 2015 and 2016, the Company did not have any firm financial asset or liability purchase or
sale commitments.
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- Information on fair value:

Non-current receivables and payables and unlisted debt instruments are measured at amortised cost,
which unless proven otherwise, would be equivalent to their fair value.,

The camying amount of the current frade receivables and payables represents an acceptable
approximation of the fair value thereof,

8. Investments in Group companies, associates and jointly controlled entities

The detail of and changes in the balances of the items in this heading at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Balance al Akl & . ; Balance af
ddiliens disposals anzfers
12 41 o014 ition izpiasal Tranzfer: 9% 0 DTS

TESTA INMUEBLES EN RENTA, SOCIM, 5.4, 1666,386) {126,577 -
SOMAGUE- S.G.P5.. S A, 229,398
VALORIZA GESTION, S.AL, 165,537
INCHISACTR, S.4, 4,543
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC, MOBILIARIAS, S.L.4. 1,600,000
SACYR CONCESIONES, S.LU. 190,000 866,068
SACYR CONSTRUCCION, §.AU. . ; 297.830
SACTR GESTON DE ACTIVOS, §.L. 4 : 22.186 22,190
SACTR FINANCE, 5.A. ‘ & - &0
Woldings in Group oomponies ond joinly conirlied enities {775 o 3 (eees0) ED @an) [ snaniz
FINSA, S.R.L. . “
GRUPO UNIDOS POR EL CAHAL, 5.4, . 288
Holdings in assaciates "} V:IRET) #Ba “ > ErH

SACYR GESTION DE ACTIVOS, £.i. {4) .
SOMAGUE- 5.G.PS., S.A 142,103 {27,384}
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC. MCBILIARIAS, S.LU. 1112362 {486,638}

INCHEACYR. §.A . 11,262}
impaicment of imesiments in Group companiez_associoles and joinity oondrotied enlfies 37 57 {1_ IG

Net volue of helding: in Greup componies, asseciates and joirtly conbtrolled entities _ 3 {13 220}

SACYR CONCESIONES, $.LU. 206,081 108,153 {25,442| {100.06C;

VALORIZA GESTION, S.AU. 85,212 163,957 {223,070]

TACYR VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC. MOBILIARIAS, $.L.U. 100,899 418,976 - -

GRUPO UNIDOS POR EL CANAL, 5.4, 190,774 35137 {3269} - 222,642
SACYR GEST'ON DE ACTIVOS, S.L. 22,186 34,048 (22,240} 122,186

SOMAGUE- S.G.PL., S.A 6.677 15,518 {11,825}

ltogms o Gruop compunies, axpoieies and jointly confrolled entities. TIETEYETITIRN NEY. ey i waze N (ossasa) VY (igeien)

SACYR GESTION DE ACTVOS, S.L. [8,829 - - 8,829 -
GRUPCS UNIDOS POR EL CANAL, §.A, - [100,00C; - - {100,000}

SACTR YALLEHERMOSO PARTIC, MOBILIARIAS, S.L.U. - 70,411} - - {70,411)
impaiimiani o odrs 5 Group companies, assosiates and Jonly conbrolied seities ST MK (R 7 (170 4iT) 7 ,*- T aim (55 iy

VALORIZA GESTION, 5.AY, . 81,083 - 81,083

I Y __—

el value of loans to Group companie: azzaciate: and jointly conlrolled entitic:

Ml wizlie al sllsir linenecial s:iefi in Group companies and associates
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The detail of and changes in the balances of the items in this heading at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Ealance ot Aalelifis Disporals i _— Balance at
0 T aEE ddition: izposal: ranzfers o —

SOMAGLUE-§.G.P5.. S.A 229,398
VALORIZA GESTION, §.AU. 168,537
NCHISACYR, 5.4, 4,543
SACY? VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC. MOBILIAREAS, S.L.U. {25C,425) 650,000 1,999,574
SACYR CONCEIONES, S.LU. §25,068
SACYR COMSTRLCCION, 5.AL. 297,830
SACYR GESTON O ACTIVOS, S.L. 22,193
SACYR FINAMCE, 5.A. - 50
SACYR SECURITES, §.A - 100,230 100,230
SACYR INVESTMENTS, §.A. 150314 150,316
Holdings in Grovp compemies and jointly controlied enfifies CAdesite  yose g} TIT 000 neniia
EINSA, SRL. a4 44
GRUPOC UNIDOS POR EL CANAL, 5.A 268 . 286
oldings i asicoicies 3% s ~ : <ETY e
SACYR GESTION DE ACTIVOS, S.L. 18,833, {8,833
SOMAGUE-5.G.PS, 5.A. {89,489) 136,351 {127,840
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PART.C. MOBIARIAS, S.L4. {1.600,000) 55,641 {70.411]  1.614,779)
NCHISACYR. S.A. 1,262) 312 5 [1.57¢)

SACYR SECURITES, 5.A [a.564) E - {3.084)

o e e

4 2 ) Ty ssa S5 ) (L7see

- oo

? 589 2140611

et value of heldings in Greup companies, associates and jointly conirolled enfilies )

SACYR CONCES'ONES, S.L.U. 188,72 97,672 1173,438) 113,626
VALOR'ZA GESTON, S.A.U. 26,099 68,208 168,624) 25,679
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC. MOBILIARIAS, 5.L.U. 719,875 330,638 {450,000} 400,513
GRUPO UNIDOS POR EL CANAL, 5.4, 222,642 62,119 113,643} 271,018
SACYR GESTION DE ACTIVOS, §.L. 11,788 17,454 19.953) 20,181
SOMAGUE-S.G.P 5., LA 10,370 3,273 {38,104) 5,539
iLoans fo Group companisa. associales and jointly conirolied LITRER L s0r M (wagTa) [T, gisogon) BT 8508

GRUPOS UNIDOS POR EL CANAL, 5.A.
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC. MOBIUARIAS, S.L.U.

ampairment of ledns ko Group companies, arsoclales and jointly conlrolied enifies
et value of loans to Grovp companiez, aszaciate: and jeinfly centrolled entifies

VALORIZA GEETON, 5.A0.

{190,500]

et value of other limancial azzets in Group companic: and aszociales

« Somague 5.G.P.S., S.A.

In 2016 the Company recognised an impdirment loss of 38,351 thousand euros on its ownership interest, due to the
impairment of the investee's goodwill as a result of the negative performance of the markets in which it operates,

«  Sacyr Vallehermoso Pardiclpaclones Mobiliarias, S.L.U.

In 2015, the Company recognised an impairment loss of 486,638 thousand euros on its investment in Sacyr
Vallehermoseo Participaciones Mobiliarias, S.L.U. and 70,411 thousand euros on the participating loan granted
to Sacyr Vallehermoso Parficipaciones Mobiliarias, S.L.U. This impairment was a result of the change in value
in the company's shareholders' equity, due to the impairment loss recognised thereby on its investment in
Repsol, S.A. At 31 December 2015, totalimpairment amounted to 1,470,411 thousand euros.

in 2016, the Company contributed 650,000 thousand euros to Sacyr Vallehermese Participaciones Mobiliarias,
S.L. fo offset losses from the subordinated loan. In 2016, the Company made a contribution of 314,840
theusand euros from the sale of the ownership interest it still held in Testa Inmuebles en Renta, Socimi, S.A., to
partially repay the syndicated loan corresponding to the purchase of shares of Repsol, S.A.

At 2016 yearend, the Company reversed a portion of the impairment on its investment in Sacyr Vallehermaoso
Participaciones Mobiliarias, 5.L.U., amounting to 55,641 thousand euros, as a result of its Improved equity position.

« Sacyr Concesiones, S.LU.
In 2011, the Company entered into a contract with its investee Sacyr Concesiones, $.L.U., agreeing to acquire

the future economic results reiated with the holdings, and with the loans held in certain concession projects,
whether they were positive or negative. On 20 January 2015, the Company signed an addendum to the
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previous contract with ifs investee Sacyr Concesiones, $.L.U., agreeing that the Company wouid assume the
economic risks and rewards arising from certain financial support agreements.

In 2015, Sacyr Concesiones, S.L.U. carred out a capital increase of 100,000 thousand euros. This increase was
subscribed in full by the Company through the contribution of 100,000 thousand euros of the loan granted to
Sacyr Concesicnes, S.L.U.

In 2014, Sacyr Concesiones, S.L.U. caried out a capital Increase of 40,000 thousand euros. This increase was
subscribed in full by the Company through the contribution of 40,000 thousand euros of the loan granted to
Sacyr Concesiones, S.L.U.

» Sacyr Gestidén de Activos, S.L.

In 2015, the Company made a contribution of 22,186 thousand euros to offset losses. At 2015 year-end, the
Compuany fransferred the impairment on the loan to impairment on the investment in the amount of 8,829
thousand euros.

« Grupo Unidos Por el Canal, §.A.

On 4 October 2010, the Company signed a framework agreement for the transfer of profit or loss from its
share in the consortium Grupo Unidos por el Canal, which it was awarded with its investee Sacyr
Construccion, S.A.U. it subsequently signed two addenda which amended the terms of this contract, in which
Sacyr, 3.A, essentially compensates Sacyr Construccién, S.A.U. for the proportional part of its holding in GUPC
of the cost overruns incurred by the former, related with the claims submitted to ACP. This quantity wil be

reduced by the amounts which are considered to be recovered for the acceptance of the claims by the
latter.

At 2015 year-end, the Company recognised an impairment loss on the loan granted to Grupo Unidos by
Canal, $.A. in the amount of 100,000 thousand euros.

¢« Testa Inmuebles en Renlq, S.A.

Testa Inmuebles en Renta, $.A's shares are listed on the Madrid Stock Exchange. In 2015, the closing price
was 12.46 euros per share and the quarter average was 13.31 euros per share.

On 8 June 2015, the Company and Merlin Properties signed an agreement by which the latter would acguire
< majority shareholding in the share capital of Testa Inmuebles en Renta, $.A. orchestrated in several phases:

= On 8 June 2015, following the capital reduction caried out by Testa Inmuebles en Renta, Socimi,
S.A.. by retuming capital confributions to its shareholders, the Company received a total of 467
million eurcs {5.80 euros per share). Additionally, Testa Inmuebles en Renta, S.A. paid an extraordinary
dividend of 4.57 euros per share, as a result of which the Company received an additional inflow of
525 million euros. Sacyr, S.A. used these funds o cancel the debt it held with Testa Inmuebles en
Renta, S.A. {953 million eurcs) and obtained free cash flow of 23% milion euros.

s On the same date, Merlin Properties subscribed to and paid a capital increase at Testa Inmuebles en
Renta, S.A., for a cash amount of 430,838,704.01 euros, through the issue of 38,491,930 new ordinary
shares of Testa Inmuebles en Renta, $.A., with a par value of twenty euro cents each and a share
premium of 109929618497 euros per share, representing 25% of the property management
company's share capital.

¢ On 23 July, the Company made the first delivery of 38,645,898 Testa Inmuebles en Rentaq, S.A. shares
to Merlin Properties, representing 25.1% of the total owned by Sacyr, S.A., for an amount of
B61,240,363.77 eurcs. Merlin now holds a 50.1% interest in Testa Inmuebles en Renta, S.A.

* The acquisition alsc by Merin Properties, no later than 30 June 2015, through a second delivery of
76,248,281 Testa Inmuebles en Rentq, S.A, shares owned by Sacyr, S.A. for an amount of 494 million
euros, after which Merlin Properties would own 99.6% of Testa Inmuebles en Renta, S.A. This second
delivery of shares may be divided into various tranches as agreed by the parties. On 12 August, the
41,437,761 shares were fransfered to Merlin Properties, which accounted for 24.91% of the share
capital of Testa Inmuebles en Renta, S.A. These shares, along with those previously subscribed and
paid up by Merlin Properties, represent 77.01% of the share capital of Testa Inmuebles en Rentq, S.A,
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After Merlin Properties gained confrol of Testa inmuebles en Renta, Socimi, S.A. on 23 July, the latter
submitted to the Spanish National Securities Market Commission {CNMV) a preliminary announcement of the
request for authorisation to launch o takeover bid for 100% of the shares of Testa Inmuebles en Rentaq, S.A., in
compliance with prevailing regulations, at a price of 13.54 euros per share, payable in cash. The Company
imrevocably agreed to immabilise its shares in Testa Inmuebles en Renta, S.A. and not to take part in the bid.

The takeover bid was authorised by the CNMV on 28 October 2015. The acceptance period ran from 2 to 14
November 2015, both inclusive. The operation, announced in a Significant Event notice dated 18 November,
had a take-uUp of 472,527 shares, representing 81.24% of the shares the offering was directed at {581,609
shares) and 0.31% of the share capital of Testa Inmuebles en Renta, S.A.

As a result of ¢l the aforementioned transactions, the Company obtained 1,794 milion euros {capital

reduction, dividend payout and subsequent sale of the shares of Testa Inmuebles en Rentq, S.A. for a total of
1,555 million euros).

In 2015, the Company classified its ownership interest in Testa Inmuebles en Renta, socimi, S.A. as assets held
for sale (Note 9).

In 2016, the Company sold its ownership interest, representing 22.61% of the share capital of Testa Inmuebles
en Renta, Socimy, $.A., for a total of 317 milfion eurcs, thereby generating a gain of 278 million euros.

¢« Sacyr Securities, S.A.

On 1 March 2016, Sacyr Securities, S.A. was formed, the corporate purpose of which is the acquisition,
administration and disposal of investments in the share capital of other companies; Sacyr, S.A. holds a 100%
interest and an investment of 100,230,508 euros. This company holds 20 milllion shares of Repsol, $.A. At 2016

year-end, the Company recognised an impairment loss of 3,054 thousand euros on its investment in Sacyr
Securities, S.A.

+ Sacyr Investments, S.A.

On 19 September 2014, Sacyr Investments, S.A. was formed, the corporate purpose of which is the
acquisition, administration and disposal of investments in the share capital of other companies; Sacyr, S.A.

holds a 100% interest and an investment of 150,315,763 euros. This company holds 30 million shares of Repsol,
S.A.

Loans to Group companies and associates are classified in the loans and receivables heading. They are
measured ot amortised cost and the interest rate applied in 2015 and 2016 was 1-month Euribor plus 4%.

In order to analyse the need to recognise impairment on investees, individual or consolidated equity, where

appropriate, of the investee in question is taken into consideration, adjusted by the unrealised gains existing
at the measurement date, which relate to the items identifiable in the balonce sheet of the investee.

The detail of the holdings in Group companies, associates and jointly controlled entities at yearend 2015 1s as
follows:
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The detdil of the holdings in Group companies, associates and jointly controlled entities at year-end 2016 is a3
follows:

- [ -~
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In accordance with arficle 155 of the Spanish Corperate Enterprises Act, the Company has complied with the
requirement to notify the companies in which they have taken a shareholding of over 10% and, where they
dlready held such a shareholding, of any additional acquisitions or sales above 10%.

The financial statements of the most significant companies are audited by the following external auditors:

company

Vallehermoso Divisidn Promocidn, $.AU.

Sacyr Industrial, §.AU.

Sacy Construccion, $.A.4,

Valoriza Gestion §.AL,

Somague-3.G.P.5, S A

Sacyr vallenermoso Paricipagiones Mobifiarias, $.L.U.
Sacyr Concesiones, 3.L.U.

Grupo Unidos Por ei Canal. §.A. Mexia Auditores

QE’E"-‘JQ_'J'-'JE

9. Non-current assets held for sale and liabilities associated with these assets

At 2015 year-end, the Company recognised a provision of 102,000 thousand euros to cover possible liabilities
on ifs investments held for sale.

In 2015, the Company classified its ownership interest in Testa Inmuebles en Renta, $.A. as assets held for sale.

At year-end the value of the ownership interest amounted to 316,840 thousand euros, representing 22.61% of
the share capital.

In 2016, the Company sold the rest of its ownership interest in Testa Inmuebles en Renta, Socimi, S.A., for @
total of 316,840 thousand euros, thereby generating a gain of 278,490 thousand euros.
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10.Cash and cash eguivalents

The breakdown of this balance sheet heading at 31 December 2015 and 2014 1s as foliows:

5.848

Cash

7857

The balance of this heading is unrestricted.

11.Equity and shareholders' equity

The details of and changes in equity in 2015 and 2016 is shown in the statement of changes in equity, which
forms an integral part of the financial statements.

a) Share capital:

At 31 December 2015 and 2016 the Company's share capital was 517,431 thousand euros, represented by
517,430,991 shares of 1 euro par value each, fully subscribed and paid. All shares are of the same class. No
shares bear founder rights. All of the shares have been admitted for trading on Spain's Continuous Market.

In 2015 the Company canied out a share capital increase charged to reserves in the amount of 15,218,558
euros, by issuing 15,218,558 shares with a par value of 1 euro each, all the same class,

The General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 12 June 2014, authorised the Board of Directors, during a
maximum period of five years, to increase share capital through monetary contributions up to a maximum of
251,106,216 euros.

The share premium is subject fo the same restrictions and can be used for the same purposes as voluntary
reserves, including conversion to share capital.

In 2016 the Company redeemed convertible debentures in the amount of 200 million eurcs, whereby the
component of equity not enforced generated a share premium of 17,143 thousand euros

In 2015 the Company offset losses from previous years with an share premium and unrestricted reserves, in the
respective amounts of 667,611,816.28 eurcs and 931,868,571.93 euros.

The Company’s shareholders at 31 December 2015 and 2016, as recorded at the Spanish National Securities
Market Commission [CNMV), are as follows:
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Disa Corporacion Fetrolifera, 5.A, 12.66% 12.66%
Grupo Corporative Fuertes, S.L. 6.27% 8.27%
Cymisiag, 3.L. 1.86% 5.06%
Bata Asociados, §.L. EC8R 5.08%
Prilomni, §.L. £.66% 4.66%
Gam International Management Limiled {formerly THS! IPTR 3 06%
Prilou, &.L. 3.16% 2.16%
Other 42.40% &0.05%

b) Reserves of the Company:

The detdails of the Company's reserves at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were cs follows:

Legal rezerve 103,484 &2.418

Voluntary rezerve 741,880 30,735

Totdl BLS 344 73153

Companies are required to fransfer at least 10% of profit for the year to a legal reserve until this reserve
reaches 20% of share capital. This reserve is not distributable to shareholders, and may conly be used to cover
the recelvable balance of the income statement if no other reserves are available.

At 31 December 2015 and 2016, the legal reserve amounted to 12.06% and 20% of share capital,
respectively.

The Company's voluntary reserves are unrestricted.

c} Treasury shares:

At 31 December 2015, the Parent heid 4,898,800 freasury shares, equal to 0.94675% of its share capital. At the
average exchange rate, the price paid was 10.6842 euros per share.

At 31 December 2014, the Parent held 6,068,302 treasury shares, equal to 1.1728% of its share capital. At the
average exchange rate, the price paid was 6.84 euros per share.

Movements in treasury shares in 2015 and 2014 were Qs follows:
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Shares bought {liquidity contract; 33,874,772
Shares sold (liquidity contract] {31,820,748;
Bonus share isue 78,778
Sheres bought (liquidity contract) 72,089.138
Shares bought idiscretionary transaction) 4,899,480
Shares sold {iquidity contract! 73,808,783
Shares sokd {discretionary transaction) {2.018.933

Balance at 311214 £.068.309)

Throughout 2016, the Company maintained the liguidity agreement it entered into on 29 March 2012 with
GVC Gaesco Bolsa, 8.V., S.A. pursuant to CNMY Circular 3/2007, of 19 December.

Between 1 January and 31 December 2016, 76,988,618 and 75,819,116 Sacyr shares were bought and
disposed of, respectively.

At 31 December 2016, the Company was custodian of a total of 1,601 shares of Sacyr, S.A., which were those
that were not subscribed in the bonus issue of 2015,

The Company will be the legal custodian of these securities in the three years established by law, at the end
of which, and pursuant to Article 59 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, it will sell and deposit the
resulting amount, together with the dividend rights received during this entire period, in the General Depaosit
Fund, where it will be available to its shareholders.

At 20146 year-end, the share price of Sacyr, S.A. was 2.220 euros, 22.38% lower than at the prior year close
{1.814 euros per share).

d) Grants:

The information on grants received by the Company, which form part of equity, together with the results
charged to the income statement in refation 1o such grants, is discussed in Note 13,

12.Provisions, contingent liabilities, guarantees and deposits

a)  Non-current provisions

The detail of non-current provisions in the balance sheet at the end of 2015, and of the main changes therein

during the year, is as follows:
Balance at .. | Balance at
317122014 31:.i2‘:0'5
- {20}

Provigions for tenes 1.449 1,429
Total non-current 1,449 - (20) 1429
Sacyr, S.A.
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The detail of non-current provisions in the balance sheet at the end of 2014, and of the main changes therein

during the year, is as follows:
Balance at Brsien B iU Balance at
31122015 i d1.12°201%
1,429 - -

1,429
Total non-current 1429 o = Ay

Provisions for taxes

“Tax provisions” at 31 December 2015 and 2016 includes tax licbilities whose amount or maturity is uncertain
and where an outflow of resources from the Company will probably be required to settle a liability arising
from a present obligation.

b}  Current provisions

The detdil of current provisions in the balance sheet at the end of 2015, and of the main changes thersin

during the year, is as follows:
BOIGme Gi
3112 2014 31.12 2015
140,840 30,000

Trade provisions 154,914) 118,924
Provisions for litigation 373 - a7s
Toislourrent T RUED 30,000 [CLIO MR Y

The detail of current provisions in the balance sheet at the end of 2016, and of the main changes thersin

during the year, is as follows:
Bulan;e at Amounts used Bealance at
31912:2015 31.12 2014

Trade provision: 1156.926 {4985) (22,174} 93,2567
Provisions for litigation 374 . - 374
Total current Maz02 {495) (2i174) 3483,

The provisions that the Company recognised under "Operating provisions” at 2014 year-end, amounting to 93
million euros, relate mainly to coverage of the potential risks it had to assume as shareholder of the Madrid
radial motorways in relation to the legal proceedings filed by third parties.

¢} Contingencies, guarantees and deposits

At 31 December 2015 and 2016, the following types of contingencies existed:

Guorzatess ponted to jubsidiades 343,449 1107214 1,450,632 178,935 718350 893,985
Tecnnica! puarcntess 23 244337 244,357 - 24337 214339
Economic gucranies: 124,147 124 547 250,714 78.242 13£.18Y 212,443

Guarantess of a variable amount were granted to wholly-owned subsidiaries. No liabilities other than those
refered to in the different sections of this Note that would result in an outflow of resources for the Company
are expected to arise, The fechnical guarantees posted abroad mainly relate to the project to build the third
set of floodgates on the Panama Canall.

No liabilities other than those referred to in the different sections of this Note that would result in an outflow of
resources for the Company are expected to arise,

Sacyr, S.A.
Financial Statements and Management 2016. 43 of 79



SACYR, S.A.
NOTES TO THE 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.Grants, donations or gifts and legacies

The detdils of and changes in this balance sheet heading in 2016 are shown as follows:

]
Tranler fo prodir
Increazes
et L
1356;

365

Repayments Balance at
FRayment 3112 2016

Cantre tor the Development of Industrial Tect State Admin,

In 2015 the Company did not receive any grants.

At year-end 2016, the Company was in compliance with all requirements for the receipt and use of the
foregoing grants.

14.Risk management policy

The Company is exposed to various risks, which are analysed by type.

Financial risk management policy and the instruments contracted to implement the policies are largely
determined by specific legislation and standards governing the secters in which the Company operates, and
by the circumstances prevailing on the financial markets,

CredH risk: Note 7 to the financial statements detdils the breakdown of Company debt, together with the
applicable Interest rate and maturity dates. The Company's accounts receivables relate mainly to accounts
refundable from the tax authorities and transactions with Group companies. Most of Group company
income is received directly from $tate, autonomous community and local governments in Spain. Therefore,
the credit risk is practically non-existent, and on occasions in which delays or default are incurred, they are
compensated with the respective late-payment interest, in accordance with the Public Authority Contracts
Law. Each business unit performs an assessment prior to arrangement which includes a solvency study. During
the life of its contracts, it monitors its receivables on an ongoing basis, reviewing recoverable amounts and
recognising impgirments as required.

The credit risk of the balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the holding company's
Cash department. Cash surpluses are invested in low-risk liquid instruments at highly solvent entities.

Liquidity risk: The Company draws up annual cash budgets and monthly forecasts (with breakdowns and
daily updates) to manage its liquidity risk and meet its funding needs. Liquidity risk derives from investment
commitments for 2017 based on business plans that require additional financing, and refinancing of shori-
term borrowings. However, all these risks are mitigated by the following factors:

{i) The generation of recurring cash from businesses in which the Group bases its activity;

{ii) The cbtainment of new external financing lines, be it via the banks or through the issuance of
marketable securities, based on long-term business plans of the Company continuing to be the
natural vehicle to obtain liquidity, but both access ond the financial conditions have been
severely tfightened as a result of the crisis;

(i) The simple bond issue for 30 milion euros and maturing in 2023;

(iv} Renewal of current borrowings or the repayment thereof with cash surpluses generated;

(v) The ECP promissory note issue programme for up to 300 milion eurcs and maturing within one year.
{vi) For remaining maturities in 2017 and subsequent years, based on negotiations with the financial

institutions, the Company’s directors are convinced that the loans and credit facilities will be
renewed at longer term.

{wii) Sale of non-strategic assets.
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At the date of authorisation for issue of these financial statements and on the basis of the 2017 cash fiow
projections, the Company considers it will be fully able to meet its commitments with suppliers, employees
and public administrations, taking into account that indicated above.

Interest rate risk: At 2016 year-end, based on the vield curve projections, the Company does not expect
significant fluctuations in interest rates that may affect its financial obligations.

15.Public administrations and tax matters

a) Balances

The detail of the balances relating to tax assets and liabilities excluding the deferred tax assets and liabilities
detailed in secfion b} of this note, at 31 December 2015 and 2014, is as follows:

« Taxreceivables:

1,158 167

VAT refundable

Comorate income tax receivaole 3,143 15,549
Tax receivables for inspection proceedings 34,578 36,758
Withholdings payable 20,981

e T T

« Tax payables:

“

VAT payabple 9,542
Canary islands general indirect tax payable 34 32
Tax withheld 707 902
Social secunty payable 215 194
Tax payaoles for inspection oroceedings 270

e ———— T —rTT

b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The detail of and changes in the balances of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2018 Changes: reflected in

Deferad tax assete

uUnwsed tan credits lor inswrance premioms
unied tox credits

Oftner temporary differances

Tax loss comylorwards

Total deforred tax aszets

Telal deferred tax liekilitie:
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In 2015, the Company derecognised tax loss camyforwards amounting to 60,000 thousand eurecs as a result of
Testa Inmuebles en Rentqg, Socimi, S.A. no longer being included in the Tax Group.

2014 Change: refleched in

’ Einzing baienar
M '-'1':1.".-“'”'

Ceferred tax assets
Unuted fax eredits for insurance pramiums 1,765 1247
unused fax credits 39.979 &2
Otrier tempovary differences 107,134
Tew boss camyforwards §1.279 &

Txtal defereed tax fiakilibies

During 2016, the Company recognised those deferred iax assets and/or liabilities with the tax authorities
whose recovery or reversal period was estimated to exceed one year, thus transfering the amount thereof
from the current account with the Tax Group.

These defemred tax assets were recognised in the balance sheet since the Company’s directors consider that,
based cn the best estimates of future results, including certain tax planning measures, it is likely that these
assets will be recovered within ten years,

“QOther temporary differences” includes temporary differences due to the different measurements for tax and
accounting purposes.

At 2015 year-end, the Tax Group had tax credits and unused tax loss camyforwards totalling 480,731 thousand
euros. The breakdown, by year generated, is as follows:

2007 13,485 - 13,465
2008 10,248 5,053 18,321
2009 51,419 2 51,619
2510 65,636 768 64,404
26H1 52,959 81,623 134,582
2012 36,614 34,262 §9.754
2013 33,977 31,448 58,445
2014 30,902 - 30,902
2615 481 32,679 33,229

In 2015, the Tax Group adjusted its tax loss carryforwards amounting to 180,000 thousand euros based on the
forecasts in the Group's business plan after Testa Inmuebles en Renta, Socimi, S.A. was no longer included in
the tax group.

©n 28 November 2014, Corporate Income Tax Law 27/2014 was passed, which amended the tax rates to 28%
in 2015 and 25% in 2016 and thereafter. At 31 December 2015, the Company had valued the deferred tax
assets and liabilities according to the expected tax rate at the date of reversal. This has resulted in a higher
deferred tax expense being recognised in the income statement totalling 2,193 thousand euros,

At 2016 year-end, the Tax Group had tax credits and unused tax loss camyforwards totalling 495,162 thousand
euros. The breakdown, by year generated, is as follows;
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2007 13,468 . 13,465
2008 9,543 5,063 14,696
2009 §%,43° = 51,431
2018 65,638 748 66.404
2011 83,154 1,623 134.787
202 35,555 34,250 69.804
2013 33,5817 31,458 64,985
2014 29,562 - 29,552
2615 2,378 45,511 47,889
215 440 1,497 2,137

At year-end, the Tax Group recognised ifs fax assets based on the estimated recovery date and the tax rate
applicable in that period.

¢} Reconciliotion of accounting profit to taxable profit

The reconciliation of net income and expenses for the year from continuing operations to the taxable loss for
2015 corporate income tax purposes is as follows:

Income stalement

Balance of income and expense: for ine yaar - (767,784
| pocreass: |
Corporate income tax 39,047 .
Permanent differenczes 718721 {75.099)
Temporary differences 16979 {39,56%;
- arising in the year 16,979 -
- Qriging in prior years - (39,569}
Tax loss {110,705)

The reconciliation of net income and expenses for the year from discontinued operations te the taxable loss
for 2015 corporate income tax purposes is as follows:

Bolance of income and expenses for the year 1.577.268
Corporate income tax {2,385)
Permanent differences 102,000 {1.687.974)
Tax loss 12,092}
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The permanent differences related mainly to the dividends and the gain on the partial sale of the ownership
interest in Testa Inmuebles en Renta, Socimi, S.A.

The reconciliation of net income and expenses for the year from continuing operations to the taxable profit
for 2014 corporate income tax purposes is as follows:

Income statement

Balance of income and expenses ior the year 52,403 -
Corporate income tax - {4,327
Pemmanent differences 57,748 124,448
Temporary differences 441 i1,724)
- arising in the year £41

-- grising in prior years - 1,724}
Cifeet of prior years' tax loss camylorwards -
Tax loss {78,683)

The permanent differences relate mainly to intra-group dividends and to the impaimment loss on the
ownership interest in Sacyr Vallehermoso Participaciones Mobiliarias, S.L.U.

The reconciliation of net income and expenses for the year from discontinued operations to the taxable profit
for 2016 corporate income tax purposes is as follows:

Income slafement

Balance of income and expenses for the year 278,490

Corporate income tax

Permanent differences - {278,490

Tax loss

The permanent differences relate to the gain on the partial sate of the ownership interest that the Company
held in Testa Inmuebles en Renta, Socimi, §.A.

d} Reconciliation of accounting profit to the corporate income tax expense

The reconciliation of the income tax expense (income) from continuing operations to the result of multiplying

the applicable tax rates to the total recognised income and expenses comprising profit or loss at 31
December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:
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BT BT

Income statement balance before 1axes 42,082 [728,717)
Impact of permanent ditferences {64,682 645,602
Tax rate {4.400) 124,672
Other adjustments {67) 63,727
Adjustmient due to change in tox role 146 (8}

Total tax expense recognized in profit and Io:.:: _m 37,047
(467 22501)
Total deferred tax 145 41,948

Of the total deferred tax expense recognised in 2015, a total of 39,034 thousand euros relate to the
adjustment made by the Company to measure deferred tax assets and liabilities as a result of the change in
tax rate under Law 27/2014.

The reconciliation of the income tax expense [income} from discontinued operations to the result of
multiplying the applicable tax rates to the total recognised income and expenses comprising profit or loss at

31 December 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

income statement balance before taxes 278,490 1,673,882
'mpact of permanent differences (278,450) {1.585,974;
Tax rate (3,388}

Tolal tax expence recognised in profit and lozz _ m
Tolal curreni tak : {3,386}
Total deferved tay

e) Years open for review and inspection procedures
At year-end 2014, the Group had 2011 to 2016 open for review for all the taxes applicable to it

On 11 December 2015, the Large Taxpayers Office of the Spanish Tax Authorities initiated tax audits against
Sacyr, S.A. with regard to a partia! audit of VAT for the periods from 11/2011 to 12/2012, as the head of the
VAT Tax Group 410/2008. This tax audit was completed and the assessment was signed on a contested basis
amounting to 8,821,995.67 euros.

The assessments signed on uncontested basis by Sacyr, $.A. as the Parent of the Tax Group 20/02 in relation to
corporate income tax for the periods 2004 fo 2007, totaling 75.824,683.84 euros, are curently being
challenged before the National Appeliate Court. These reviews were instigated against Sacyr, S.A. and
included payment agreements and the imposition of penallies, and all of them related to subsidiaries of the
Tax Group for these periods. 58,477,812.87 eurcs of this figure relates to the Company.

The assessments signed on a contested basis by Sacyr, $.A. as the Parent of the Tax Group 20/02 in relation to
comporate income tax for the periods 2007 to 2010, totaling 128,796,080.93 euros, are currently being
challenged before Spain's Central Administrative Economic Tribunal. These proceedings were initiated against
Sacyr, S.A. and will not under any circumstances entail payments fo the tax authorities, as they will merely be
smaller declared tax losses, all accounted for by subsidiaries in the Tax Group for these periods. 68,846,246.29
euros of this figure relates to the Company. The sanction proceedings arising from the aforementioned tax
assessment have also been appealed before the Central Administrative Economic Tribunal,
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A notice was issued with regard to the VAT assessment signed on a contested basis by Sacyr, S.A. as Parent of
the VAT Tax Group 410/08 for the period between May 2009 and December 2010, totalling 14,336,876.11
euros, and this is now being challenged af the Central Administrative Economic Tribunal. The sanction
proceedings arising from this tax assessment have alse been appeadled before this same Tribunal.

The Company's management and ifs tax advisers do not expect the final outcome of the review

proceedings under way and of the appeals that have been lodged to have a significant impact on the
financial staterments at year-end 2014.

f)  Other tax disclosures

The Company has availed itself of the Special System for Company Groups {REGE) in relation to its VAT
setlements. The Company is the head of the VAT Group. The company group's ID number is IVA 0410/08.

The Company files consolidated income tax retums and it is the head of the Tax Group. In 2014, the
Company received 143 thousand euros on account of corporate income tax. In 2015, the Company paid
5,678 thousand euros on account of corporate income tax.

16.lncome and expenses
a) Revenue

The breakdown of "Revenue” by activity and geographical market in 2015 and 2016 is as follows:

Actvites T

2

l‘ -
I'.'l

&0.13)

s W o)

rRendering of zervices &8s,

Geographical marie's o o

Spain 52,823 54,387
Other EU countries azs 47
Morth and Soutn America 3,049 5,279

Asia

5 =

b} Staff costs

The breakdown of staff costs in the income statements at 31 December 2015 and 2016 is as follows:

Wages, salaries and similar expenses 289 [14,B73)

Emp!oyee welfare costs {2,579} {2,945)

o]

Employee welfare costs relate mainly to social security charged to the company, health insurance and
fraining.
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c} External services

The detdils of the Company's extemal services in the income statement at 31 December 2015 and 2016 were
as follows:

Leases and royalties {4,368] (4,351}
Repdirs ond maintenance {3.805) {3,387}
independent professional servicas (13.32%) (35,789)
INsUranNce premiums {7.505) {7.563)
Banking and similar services {8.072) {14,353}
Advertising, puelicity and public relations {1.398) {1.054)
Supplies {1,458) {991}
Other services 3.0 {3.567}

Total external sewicefﬂ (73,055)

17.Related party transactions and balances

a) Related party fransactions

The breakdown of fransactions with related parties in 20151s as follows:

December 2015
Thowsands of euros

Bl OME ARTHEXPEMIE FROmM CONTIRTNG CFERATIONNE

1) Anance coss
2) Services recelved
3) Losses on disposal of asseh

1) Othar ﬁm

1] Finance income
2) Dividends recalved

CIUHER FEANWWALTERINE F 0NN, CON B0y OREE L TIOAS

1) Financing agrasmenis: Loan and coplicl coniributions Q 0 1130574 o' 1,120,604
2) Repay tor of Jox d finonee leese contrach (letsar) ] [ 443542 ] 463 542
3) Finance, loan and eapéal [( ) ? 0" [ 404408 [ 4,044,080
4) Repayment of cancaliation of loon and finance leass conkach (lenes) -] ] S1.00 ] L5l X 0]

December 2015
Thousands of evros

CITHER Bl ARCES FROM, CONTIEI G CEERATIDNS

1) Financing agresmaents: Loans and cophial conrbutions R -] [} LITe56 o 1179344
2) Anéncs, loan ond capiloh 9 {® | [ [ I 27T I [ 3450
5) Othar ransections aTd ] ] ] [+
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December 2015
Thousands of evros

INCCIML AN EXFENRE SO T T O NI D TP EEATHO RS

1) Finance coal

TOFALCASTS

1} Hncnce Income
DM 1 or collaborol P

ﬂhmdmmﬂcmﬁmnﬁ

The dividends from discontinued operations relate to those received from Testa Inmuebles en Renta, Socimi,
S.A., and the profit from the recognition or disposal of discontinued operations.

Al 2015 year-end, the Company recognised a provision of 102,000 thousand euros to cover possible liabilifies
on its investments heid for sale.

The breakdown of transactions with related parties in 2014 is as follows:

DECEMBER 2014
Thousands of euret

IRCOME R0 ZXPENSE FREM O isG OFERR T TR

1) Financ s cosh [} [} 3,821 [} Smas
2) Leasen 1] 4] 0 b Tar
3 Services recelved 27 o 5,485 102 8318
4] Furchase of gods 843 1] o 449 4592
5] Other sxpenses Q

TOI1AL COSTS [ 0 s
1) Finance incoms ] [ ] 27,904 0 17908
2) Dividends recelved [} L 51,782 [] 51782
) Services rendeted 1183 [ 54,955 L] 56,138
4) Sale ¢f goods (nithed goods and wark in progres) 1072 [ Q 127,728 138,720
5) Othar Income a4 [ a 0 4

TOTAL INCOME 2759k 4,64

DECEMBER 2014
Thowsands of eurea

THER TRAMNEACTHOME FROAY COMTIMIBN GO ERATIDNT

1) Finoncing agrasmenk: Laans and ¢aplhal contributions o o 573,398 [ it5sm
2) Repay kar of loams lease (leszor) ] L] 348,07 [] R
3] Ainance, loon and caplial s (b r} ] ] 7T L] Tavrae
q of of loans lodse (lesans) o o 202,141 [ ol
5] Ohher ronsaclion: 18,045 ] 0 [] H B3
DECEMBER 2014

Thousands of eurcs

CHHER B8 LA NCEL T om0 SRERR ki

1) Anancing agtésmens Loths and copial confributions [ 1] a 217,140 0 [T AT
2) Ananca, [oan and eapital s (i ) 1] ] &18,243 [} [ 8L
3} Other kansacBons 220 ] ] o 1300
DECEMBER 2014

Thousands of euros

SRCCHAAE AND CEPERE FROM DIECONT I G RATIOMT.

1] 38IVICE: receivea

1} Rendering of service ] o 10,154 -] 10,154

TOTAL INCOME

Finance costs relate to interest accrued on loans granted by Group companies to Sacyr, S.A. These expenses
are capitalised by increasing the balance to the lender.

Finance income relates fo interest accrued on loans granted by Group companies to Sacyr, 5.A. This income
is capitalised by increasing the balance to the lender.
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Income from services includes the structure fee that the Company passes on to the Group heads and the
services it rebills whose expense is borne by Sacyr, S.A,

Gains from the sale of assets relate to disposals and work performed for related parties.

Financing agreements, loans and capital confributions relate to loans granted by the Company to Group
companies.

Financing agreements in o bomower capacity include the loans recelved by the Company frem Group
companies.

The mdin contracts with related parties are as follows:

= Sacyr, S.A. has signed consultancy contracts with two law firms, Luis Javier Cortés and Tescor,
Profesionales Asociados, S.L., which are both related parties of Matias Cortés (Director of Sacyr], for
variable amounts which in 2016 totalled 2,493 thousand euros and 238 thousand euros, respectively.

s In 2016, Sacyr Construccidn, S.A.U. rendered services and caried out work on warehouses for El Pozo
Alimentacién, related to Grupo Corporativo Fuertes, S.L. (Director of Sacyr) - the project was worth
10,990 thousand euros,

In 2016, no valuation adjustments were made on uncollectible debts relating to amounts included in the
outstanding balances and in expenditure recognised in the year regarding related-party borrowings.

The balance of income and expenses with Group companies and associates at 31 December 2015, as
shown in the corresponding income statement, is as follows:
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Rendering of services

Oiher Group

companies

Associales

B4 407 3,045 0474
TESTA INMUEBLES EM RENTA, SOCHMI, S.A. - 2.84% 2,865
VALLEHERMOSO DIVISION PROMOCION, 5 AU, 477 477
VALORIZA CONSERVACION DE INFRAEST. , £.AU. 439 439
VALORIZA GESTION, S.A.U. B,501 €,501
CAFESTORE, 3.AU. 138 138
S.AU. DEPURACION Y TRATAMIENTOS - SADYT &41 541
EMPRESA MIXTA DE AGUAS DE STA, CRUZ DE TENERIFE, §.A 1,828 1826
GRUPO UNIDOS POR EL CANAL, 5.A. 5,147 5,147
SACYR COMCESIGHMNES CHILE, §.A. & - 18
AUTOVIA DEL TURIA CONCES. DE LA GENERALITAT VALENCIAMNA, §.A, * 37 37
CAVOSA OBRAS Y PROYECTOS, $.A. v = 29
SACTR INDUSTRIAL PERU, S AL, 21 - 21
'NTERCAMS ADOR DE TRANSPORTES DE MONCTLOA, S.A = 73 73
VALORIZA AGUA, 3.L.U, 274 - 234
NTERCAMB ADOR DE TRANSPORTES DE PLAZA ELIPTICA, S.A - 37 a7
AUTOVIA DE BARBANZA, §.A. [CONCES. XUNTA GALICIA *x 30
SACYR CONCESIONES, S.L.U. 6,215 4215
SACYR CONSTRUCCION,; §.A.U. 29,195 - 29,195
VALORIZA FACILITIES, 5.AU. a3s 835
VALORIZA SERVICIOS MEDIAMBIENTALES. §.A 1,344 - 1,344
SACYR INDUSTRIAL, S.L.U, 493 493
VALORIZA SERVICIOS A LA DEPENDENCIA, S ALY, &6 44
SOC, CONC. AEROPYERTO DE MURCIA, S.A 32 33
TIO. DE RESIDUOS LA RICIA, S.L. 10 - 18
SACYR VALIFHERMOSC PARTIC. MCOCBILIARIAS, S.L. 100 180
SOMAGUE, §.G.P.5, §.A, 451 451
ALTOVHA DEL ARLANION, 5.A. 15 - 15
GESFOMIESTA, 3.A. = 8 18
MEOPISTAS, S.AL. 37 7
SOLEVAL RENOVABLES, S.L. 11 i
VALCRIZA MIMERIA, §.L, 25 25
TESTA RESIDENC.AL, S.L. - 31 3
Non-conirolling 38,987 - 38,787
GRUPO UHMDOT POR EL CANAL, 5.A. 8,631 4,631
SACYR COMNCESIONES, 3.L.U. 9,670 2,670
SACYR GESTION DE ACTIVOS, §.k. 471 47%
SACYR VALLEHERMGSO PARTIC. MOBILIARIAS, S.L. 18,818 18,818
SOMAGUE, 3.G.P.S, §.A, 200 200
VALORIZA GESTION, $.A., 3.197 3,197
Dividends 35578 383578
SACYR COMNSTRUCCION, S.AU. 35,578 38,576
EXPENSES (%o FRTE
Services recelved 23,847 2,841 24,3%
PROSACYR OCIQ, 5.1, 64 45
SACYR CONSTRUCCION, S.AU. 4,273 4,273
SOMAGLUE, 5.G.P.S., S.A. 222 = 222
TESTA INMUEBLES EN RENTA, SOCIM, S.A. - 2,541 2,541
VALORIZA AGUA, S.L.U. 1,825 1,825
VALORIZA FACILIFES, S.AU. 482 - 432
VALCRIZA SERVICIOS MEDIOANBIENTALES. S.A. 4 4
SACYR CHILE, $.A. 16,979 16,979
Non-controlling 8701 - 5,781
HCHSATYR, §.A. 20 20
SACYR CONSTRUCCION, $.A U, 5267 8,267
SOMAGUE AMBIENTE, 3.A- N Fal
SOMAGUE, 5.5.P.S, 5.A. 323 - 323
Sacyr, S.A.
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The balance of Income and expenses with Group companies and associates at 31 December 2016, as

shown in the corresponding income statement, is as follows:

INCOME
Rendering of services 54 492 243 54,955
AUTOVIA DEL ARLANZON, 5.A, 15 - 15
VALLEHERMOSO DiVSiOH PROMOCION, §.A.U. 1,598 1,698
VALORZA CONSERVACHON DE INFRAEST., §.AU, 853 850
VALORIZA GESTION, 5.A. 12,494 12,494
CAFESTORE, $.AU. 21 121
§.AlL. DEPURACION Y TRATAMIENTOS - SADYT 525 525
GRUPO UNIDOS POR EL CANAL, 5.A, 3,001 3,001
SCRINSER, $.A. a5 35
SOMAGUE- 5.G.P.5., S.A. 324 - 324
AUTOVIA DEL TURIA CONCES.DE LA GENERALTAT VALENT ANA - A8 46
CAVOSA OBRAS Y PROYECTOS, §.A. 21 21
SACYR INDUSTRIAL PERY, S.A S, 17 17
EMPRESA, MIXTA DE AGUAS DE STA.CRUZ DS TEMNERHE, §.A. 1,938 1938
VALORIZA AGUA, $.LU, 74 714
PRINUR, S.A.U. 25 22
AUTOVIA DE BARBANZA, §.A, [CONCES XUNTA GALICIA} a3 . al
SACYR COMCESONES, $.L.4. 6,205 - 6,205
SACYR COMSTRUCTION, $.AM, 19.890 - 19,590
VALORIZA FACILITIES, 5.A0, 585 - 985
VALORIZA SERVICIOS MEDIOAMBIENTALES, 5.A, 1.372 1.372
SACTR INDUSTRIAL, S.L.u. 4,247 4,247
VALORIZA SERVICICS A LA DEPENDENCIA, $.L.U. 71 71
$OC. CONC. AEROPUERTC DE MURCIA, §.A. 18 18
TIO. DE RESIDUOS LA RIOJA, S.L. ? ?
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC. MOBILIARIAS, S.L. 100 100
IDEYCO, 5.AU. ? : 3
HOSPITAL DE PARLA, $.A. 95 9
HOSPTAL DEL NCRESTE. §.A. 108 105
NEOPISTAS, S.A4. a7 a7
SOLEVAL REMOVABLES, 3.0, 13 13
VALORIZA MINERIA, §.L, 18 18
CTRA. PALMA-MANACOR. CONCES DEL COMSELL INSULAR DE MALLORCA, S.A. - 14 16
Non-controlling 27,9046 - 27,704
GRUPO UNIDOS POR EL CAMAL, $.A. 7,519 = 7.51%
SACTY COMNCESONES, $.L.4, 4,385 4,885
SACYR GESTION DE ACTIVOS, S.L. 594 594
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC. MOBILIARIAS, §.L. 13,793 13,798
SOMAGUE, §.G.P.5, S.A. 307 7
VYALORZA GESTION, S.AH, 803 803
Dividends 51,783 51,783
SACYTR COMSTRUCCION, $.AU, 45,042 46,042
VALORIZA GESTION, S.AU. 5,741 5741
EXPENSES frge iR R
services recelved 5485 - 5,485
SACYR COMSTRUCCION, $.AU, 2,588 - 2,568
SOMAGUE, 5.GP3., S.A. 192 102
VALORIZA AGUA, §.L.U. 1,538 1,938
VALORIZA FACILITIES, 8.A.U. 486 486
VALORIZA SERVICIOS MEDIOAMBIENTALES, §.A. 5 5
5.A.L, DEPURACION Y TRATAMIENTOS - SADYT 363 353
CAFESTORE, §.AU. a3 - 3
Non-conirolling 822 - 3,828
INCHIBACYR. §.A. 21 21
SACYR CONSTRUCCION, 5.AM. 2.29¢ 2,29%
SOMAGUE AMBIENTE, 5.4 84 B84
SACYR INVESTMENTS, $.A, 54 54
SACYR SECURITIES, $.A, 113 2 13
VALORIZA GESTOM, S.A. 1,24 - 1.261
I
Sacyr, S.A,

Oiher Group

companie:

TOTAL
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b) Balances with related parties

The detail of the balances with related parties in the balance sheet at 31 December 2015 is as follows;

_ & G":f : = "
COMPanas

NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 1,

Equity Insiruments {Nole 8) 1,486,374 - 1,486,374
Loans to companlies (Note 8) 873,541 . 873,541
Other financial assets (Nole 8) 81,083 81,083
—
{CURRENT RECEIVABLES [0 : <,
Trade recelvables 132,204 (34) 132,172
Loans to companies (Note 8) 135,614 135,614
NON-CURRENT PA\'ABLES BALANCES oy :_j' —"', . = _ ;_: ]
Non-current payables 7.029 7.029
—
‘CURRENT PAYABLES :
Current inferest-bearing loans and borrowings 269,238 - 269,238
Trade payables/payable fo suppliers 555,724 164 555,888
T 325 126
Sacyr, S.A.
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Current trade receivables from Group companies relate to invoices issued by the Company to different
Group companies, corporate income tax balances, tax inspection proceedings and VAT, as follows:

2015 Char Srovg

Comipasnies

Trade receivables 132,208 {34) 182,172
AL NORQ. CONCE. CDAD. AUTC. REG. MURCIA, S.AU, . 6 6
AUTOPISTA DE GUADA MEDINA, CONTESIONARIA ESPANCLA, 5.4 5 - 5
AUTOVIA DE BARBANZA, 5.A.JCOMCES XUNTA GALGIA] 52 - 92
AUTOVIA DEL ARLANION, 5.4, 506 508
AUTOVIA DEL ERESMA, CONC. J.CASTILLA Y LEOH, $.A. 259 289
AUTOVIA DEL TURIA COMCES.DE LA GEMERALTAT VALENCIAMA, 5.A, - 12 12
BIOMASA PUBNTE GEMIL, 5.4. {#c} (70}
BURGUERSTORE, $.1.U, 1 ]
CAFESTORE, S.AU. 192 - 192
CAVOSA OBRAS Y PROYECTOS, §.A. 58 58
A, BNERGETICA DE LARDDA. S.L. 5 E]
COMPARIA ENERGETICA PUENTE DE. OBSPO, 8.4 55 - 55
COMPARIA ENERGETICA DE PATA DE MULO, §,L. 25 25
COMPARIA ENERGENICA LAS VILLAS, $.L. 91 jal
EMPRESA MiXTA DE AGUAS DE STA.CRUI DE TENERIFE, 5.A, 2 . 2
ERANTCS, S.4, 14 - [T
GESCENTESTA, 5.LU. 7 . 7
GESFTESTA, §.L. - 1 1
GESFOTESTA, S.A. 3 3
GRUPO SAINCA, S.A.C. 3 a
GRUPQ UNIDOS POR EL CAMAL, 5.4, 34,356 34,356
HOSPITAL DE PARLA, 5.4, 12 - 12
HOSPTAL DEL NORESTE. §.A. 1k 5 Nz
IDEYCO, §.AU. H ?
INCHEACYR. A, t |
NTERCAMBIADOR DE TRANSPORIES DE MONCLOA, S.A. - | 1
NEOPSTAS, §.AL. 05 105
PRINUR, §.A.U, 814 B14
PROSACYR OCIO, 5.LU. g - ?
$.A. DEPURACION Y TRATAMENTOS - SADYT 403 . 403
SACYR CHILE, S.A. 4 4
SACYR CONCESIONES CHILE, $.A, 0 . i
SACYR CONCESIONES, S.LU. 1,938 - 1,935
SACTR COMSTRUCCION COLOMEEA, 5.A. $ ]
SACYR CONSTRUCCION USA LLC 33 33
SACYR CONSTRUCCION, 5.ALU. 19,336 - 19,336
SACYR ENVIRONMENT USA LLC 8 B
SACYR ZNANCE, 5.A. 62,885 62,885
SACYR BLUOR, S.A. 3 . 3
SACTR INDUSTRIAL COLOME'A, S.A.5, 4 4
SACYR INDUSTRIAL MEXICO, §.A. DE C.V, 7 7
SACYR (HNDUSTRIAL MONDISA MANT, ELECTRICOS PAHAMA, §.A, 2 2
SACTR INDUSTRIAL PERU, 5.A5. 48 48
SACYR INDUSTRIAL PTY LTD 9 ?
EACYR iNDUSTRIAL, S.LV. 856 BS4
SACYR [HERASTRUCTURE USA LLC B 5
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC.MOBILIARIAS, 5.L. (59¢) 1586}
SANTACRUCERA DE AGUAS, 5.1 3 3
SCRINSER, $.A.L. i22) - {22
SECADERGS DE BIOMASA, S.i. 14 114
$OC. CONC, AEROPUERTO DE MURCIA, §.A. 14 &7
SOMAGLE CONCGESSOES DE INFRAEST., S.A. 475 - 495
SOMAGUE INMOBILIARIA §.A 1,866 - 1,868
SOMAGUE-5.GPA., S.A. 218 218
SURGE AMBIENTAL, 5.0 4 - 4
FESTA INMJES_ES EN RENTA, SO, §.A, - 58 58
TESTA REZDENCIAL, 5.t 118 i1s
O DE RESIDUOS LA RICJA, S.i. 32 32
TUNGSETEN SAM RINX, §.L. 152 - {52
VALLEHERMOSO DIViS/ON PROMOCION, 5.AL, £26 624
VALORIZA AGUA, S.LU. 263 263
VALORIZA CONSERVACION DE INFRAEST., 5.A.U. 475 . 4785
VALORIZA EHERGIA OPERACIOH ¥ MANTENIMIENTO., S.LA. 80 - 80
VALORIZA FACILITIES, 5.AU, 2.845 2,845
VALORTZA GESTHKIN, 5.AM. 1.9068 1,908
VALORIZA MINER[A, 5.0 &7 - 157,
VALORSZA SERVICIOS A LA DEPENDEHCIA, S.A.U. 13 13
VALORZA SERVICIOS MEDIOAMBIEMTALES BOLIVIA, S.RL. 3 3
VALORIZA SERVICIOS MEDIOAMBIEMTALES, 5.A. 1,448 b 445
VIASTUR, CONCESIOMARIA DEL PRINGIPADD DE ASTURAS, $.A 2 - 322
Leans to companles (Note 8) 135,614 . 185,474
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES (34)
Sacyr, S.A.
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Current payables to Group companies relates to income tax balances, additional tax assessments, non-
current loans and infra-Group transactions. Current frade payables correspond to invoices issued by Group
companies 1o Sacyr, $.A. The breakdown of these headings is as follows:

Qthet Group

3 Asiociales
CoOmMmpanes

[CURRENT PAYABLES 1345747

PR ¥ b

Currenf interesf-bearing loans and borrowings 247,258 - 249238
ASTOV.DEL ERESMA,CONC.J.CAST.LEON, $.A. i348; - {346}
AUTOVIA DE BARBANZA, 5.A. [CONC.XTA.GAL! 46" - 46"

BIQELECTRICA DE LINARES, 8.L. i17E - {178,
BIOELECTRICA DE VALLADOLID, 5.L. 1 - 1

BIOMASAS DE PUENTE GENIL, S.L. {1,203 - {1,208}
BURGUERSTORE, $.L.U. 143 - (4§
CAFESTORE, S.A L. {59} - {59}
CAPACE, 5.L. {*al - 13}
CAVOSA DBRAL Y PROYECTOS, §.A, 995 - 999
CIA. ENERGETCA DE LA RODA, §.L. 152} - 152
ClA ENERG PUENTE DEL OS1PO, 8.4 ir,'50] = 1,158
COMP.EHNERGETCA DE PATA DE MULO, 5.L. {999 - 1999
COMPARIA ENERG. LAS VILLAS, S.L. {743 - {743,
EMP.NIXTA AGUAS STA CRUFZ DE TENEREE, S.A. ae; - e
ERANTOS, S.A. i - m
EUROCOMERCIAL, 5.A. 1 . 1

HIDRCANDALUZA, 5.A, ] - (4
HOSPITAL DEL NORESTE, £.A. . 4 M
IDEYCO, 5.A.U. ? . ?
INCHISAGYR, S.A. 651 - &61

INTERCARM.TRANSPOR.PZA ELIPTICA, S.A, é é
INTERCAMB DE TIES. DE MONCLOA, S.A. - 3 5
MMNERE INFRAESTRUCTURAS, S.A. * 18 'S
OBR.Y SERV. DE GALICIA Y ASTURIAS, S.A. {a1s E (61]
PRINUR, $.A.U. [624) - {624)
PROSACYR OCIO, 5.L.U, 45 - 45
$.Al. DEPURACION Y TRATAMIEWTOS 907 - {507}
SACYR COHCESIONES PARTICIPADAS IV, S.L. i . 1
SACYR CONCESIONES PARTICIPADAS VI, S.L. s E
SACYR CONCESIONES, S.L.U. 1,284 - 1.294
SACYR CONSTRUCCION, S.A. 206,339 206,339
EACYR FINANCE, S.A.U i - [2)
SACYR GESTON DE ACTVOS, S.L, 8 - (15
SACYR INDUSTRIAL, 5.L.U. 394 - 394
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PART. MOB., S.LU. 4736 - 67,315
SANTACRUCERA DE AGUAS, 5.4, i4) . {4
SCRIMNSER, S.AL. 942 - 942
SECADEROS DE BIOMASA, S.L. i458) - (668]
SOMAGUE AMBIENTE, 5.A. 13 . 13
SOMAGUE, SGPS, S.A 3 - 3

SURGE AMBIENTAL, S.L. il - i1
TESTA INMUEBLES EN RENTASOCIMI, S.A. - {35, iast
TESTA RESIDENCIAL, 5.L.U. - 4 A
TG, DE RESIDUOS LA RIOJA, S.L. 8 . -
TUNGSTEN $. FINX, §.L. 1t . "

VALLEHERMOSO DIV, PROMOCION, §.AL. {443} - {449)
VALORIZA AGUA, S.L.U. {137} {1a7)
VALORIZA CONSER.DE IMFRA., S.A L. {114) - {114]
VALORIZA ENERGIA QPERACICHN Y MANT., S.L.U. i . i)
VALCRIZA FACILITIES, $.AU. 2 : 2
VALORIZA GESTION, 5.AL, 413 - 413
VALORIZA MINERIA, §.L.U. s . 0
VALORIZA SERVICICS A LA DEPEMDENCIA, §.AU. 1151 - {154
VALORIZA SERVICIOS MEDIOAMBENTALES, 5.4, {168} - {1618
VALORIZA SERVICIOS SOTIO SANTARIOS, S.L. {4} i
Trade payables/payable fo suppliers 585,724 144 556,888
ALAZOR INVERSIONES, $.A. 3 ‘ 3
SACYR CHILE, 5.A. 145,604 - 145,608
SACTR CONSTRUCCTION, S.A. 362030 . 252,030
SOMAGUE-EMGENHARIA, 5.A. 38,150 38,186
TESTA INMUEBLES EN RENTASCCIM, 5.A ‘64 184
VALORIZA FACILITIES, S.AU. 3ig - Ak
VALORIZA GESTIONM, §.A.L. 9.610 - 9,410
VALORIZA SERVICIOS MEDICAMBIEFITALES, §.A, 1 - 1

OTROS é - &

TOTAL CURRENT PAYABLES BALANCES 164
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The detail of the balances with related parties in the balance sheet at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

_

NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES i

Other Group

companies

Equity Instruments (Note 8) 2,140,011 - 2,140.0m
Loans to companles (Note 8) 544,252 . 544,252
Other linancial assets (Note 8) 81,083 81,083

TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 2,765,346 _

{CURRENT RECEIVABLES ., ¥

Trade recelvables 42,054 174 62,228
Loans o companles {Note 8) 191,804 191,804

TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 253,858 _ 254,032

'NON-CURRENT PAYABLES BALANCES &7

Non-current payables 83,851 83,851

TOTAL NON-CURRENT PAYABLES BALANCES _ 83.851

CURRENT PAYABLES

Current Inieres'l-bocrlng loans and borrowings 592,988 31 593,019
Trade payables/payable to suppliers 242,944 242,945

TOTAL CURRENT PAYABLES BALANCES 835,934 _ 835,965

The balance of equity instruments comesponds to Company holdings in Group companies, as detailed in
Note 8 to these financial statements.

Current and non-current loans to companies comprise those granted to Group companies, as detailed in
Note 8 to these financial statements, These loans accrue floatingrate inferest tied to EURIBOR +4%.

“Other non-current financial assets” relates o a commercial balance with Valoriza Gestién, $.A.U.

The amount corresponding to non-current payables includes loans from Group companies received by the
Company.

Current trade receivables from Group companies relate to invoices issued by the Company to different
Group companies, corperate income tax balances, tax inspection proceedings and VAT, as follows:
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Oher Group “ i
2016 e Associales TGTAL

ICURRENY RECEVABLES

Trade recelvablas 42,054 174 42,228
AUNCRQ.CONCE.CDAD.AUTC.REG.MURCIA, §.A.U. - a 3
AUTOPISTA CE GUADALMEDINA, CONCESIONARIA ESPANOLA, S.A. 4 s i
AUTOVIA DE BARBANZA, 5.A.{CONCES.XUNTA GALICIA) 98 = 98
AUTOVIA DEL ARLANZON, 5.A. 497 - 497
AUTOVIA DEL ERESMA, CONC. J.CASTILLA ¥ LEON, $.A. 28) - 281
AUTOVIA DEL TURIA CONCES.DE LA GENERALITAT VALENCIANA, 5.A. - 22 2
BIOMASAS DE PUENTE GENIL S.L. 108 - 108
BURGUERSTORE, 5.L. 2 = 2
CAFESTORE, S.A.U. 178 - 176
CAVQOSA OBRAS Y PROYECTOS, S.A. 181 - 161
ClA. ENERGETICA DE LA RODA, S.L. 32 = a2
COMPARIIA ENERGETICA DE PATA DE MULO, S.L. 115 15
COMPARIA ENERGETICA LAS VILLAS, 5.L. &7 &7
COMPARIA ENERGETICA PUENTE DEL OBISPO, 5.L. 128 3 128
CTRA. PALMA-MANACOR, CONCES DEL CONSELL INSULAR DE MALLORCA, S.A. 12 12
EMPRESA MIXTA DE AGUAS DE STA.CRUZ DE TEMERIFE, 5.A. 3 3
GESTION ENERGIA ¥ MERCADOS, S.L. 16 1%
GRUPQ SAINCA, S.A.C. 3 3
GRUPO UNIDOS POR EL CANAL, S.A. 37,284 . 37,284
HOSPITAL DE PARLA, S.A. (1) n
HOSPITAL DEL NQRESTE, £.A. = 3 3
IDEYCO, 5.A.U. a8 8
INCHISACYR, §.A. 1 7
INTERC AMBIADCR DE TRANSPORTES DE MONCLOA, S.A. . 90 %0
INTERCAMBIADCR DE TRANSPORTES DE PLAZA ELIPTICA, S.A. 46 Ab
MYAH GULF OMAN DESALINATION COMPANY SAOC 1 1
PRINUR, 5.A.U. {13) - {13}
PROSACYR OCIO, S.L.U. 9 9
$.A.U, DEPURACION ¥ TRATAMIENTOS - SADYT 175 175
SACYR CHILE. 5.A. 27 - 27
SACYR COLOMBIA, S.A. n 1"
SACYR CONCESICNES CHILE, §.A. il 101
SACYR CONCESIONES, §.L.U. 745 745
SACYR CONCESIONES SERVICIOS 5.A. DE C.V. [MEXICO) 1 2 1
SACYR CONSTRUCCION APARCAMIENTOS DACIZ Y VELARDE, S.L. {2} - (2)
SACYR CONSTRUCCION APARCAMIENTOS JUAN ESFLANDIU, 8.1 {7} (7]
SACYR CONSTRUCCION APARCAMIENTOS PLAZA DEL MILENKD, S.L. 9 [
SACYR CONSTRUCCION APARCAMENTOS VIRGEN DEL ROMERC, S.L. m - 1)
SACYR CONSTRUCCION COLOMBIA, 5.A. & &
SACYR CONSTRUC CION PLAZA DE LA ENCARNACION, §.L. 48 48
SACYR CONSTRUCCION USA LLC 33 B
SACYR CONSTRUCCION, 5.A.U. 1137 1,137
SACYR ENVIRONMENT USA LLC 2 2
SACYR FINANCE, 5.A. {67) {67)
SACYR FLUCR, S.A. 120 120
SACYR INDUSTRIAL MEXICO, S.A. DE C.V. 7 L 7
SACYR INDUSTRIAL MONDISA MANTENIMIENTOS ELECTRICOS PANAMA, S.A. 2 2
SACYR INDUSTRIAL QPERACION Y MANTENIMIENTO, 5.L. 57 57
SACYR INDUSTRIAL PERU, 5.A.S. 32 32
SACYR INDUSTRIAL PTY LTD 9 9
SACYR INDUSTRIAL, S.L.L. 2,057 - 2,057
SACYR INFRASTRUCTURE USA LLC 5 5
SACYR SECURITIES, S.A. 137 - 37)
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PARTIC.MOBILIARIAS, S.L. 567 547
SANTACRUCERA DE AGUAS, S.L. [ - [
SCRINSER, 5.A. {88) - (88)
SECADEROS DE BIOMASA, S.L. {96) - {96)
SOC. CONC. AEROPUERTO DE MURCIA, §.A. 16 116
SOC.ECONGCMIA MIXTA DE AGUAS DE SORIA, S.L. {1} (1)
SOHAR SWROCONSTRUCTICN COMPANY LLC 4 - 4
SOLEYAL RENOVYABLES. 5.L. 1 = 1
SOMAGUE CONCESSOES DE INFRAEST.. S.A. 495 495
SOMAGUE IMOBILIARIA, §.A. 1.866 1,846
SOMAGUE-S.G.P.S., S.A. 247 & 247
SURGE AMBIENTAL, S.L. 7 7
IO, DE RESIDUOS LA RICJA, S.L. [22) (22)
TUNGSTEN 5AN FINX, S.L. {25) {25)
VALLEHERMOSCO DIVISION PROMOCION, 5.A.U. 3,804 3,808
VALORIZA AGUA, 5.L.U. 359 359
VALORIZA CONSERVACION DE INFRAEST,, S.A.U. 1315 1.315
VALORIZA FACILITES, 5.A.U. 3,218 3,218
VALORIZA GESTION, §.A.U. 4,719 4,719
VALORIZA SERVICIOS A LA DEPENDENCIA, S.L.U. 27 7
VALORIZA SERVICIOS MEDIOAMBIENTALES, 5.A. 1,547 1,547
VIASTUR, CONCESIONARIA DEL FRINCIPADC DE ASTURIAS, S.A. 34 a3
Loans to companies (Nole 8) 191.804 . 191,804
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Current payables to Group companies relates to income tax balances, additional tax assessments, non-
current loans and intra-Group transactions. Current trade payables corresponds to invoices issued by Group
companies to Sacyr, S.A. Detdils are as follows;

B o (Ue]

Ccompanies

ICURRENT PAYABIES FAGREE
Current Inferast-bearing loans and borrowlngs 572,982 31 573,017
AUTOV.DEL ERESMA,CONC.J.CAST.LECN, S.A. {309} 1309}
AUTOViA DE BARBANZA, $.A.JCONCES.XUNTA GALICIA! {30 {30!
BIOELECTRICA DE UNARES, S.L. 102 02
BIOELECTRICA DE VALLADOLID, §.L. 2 . 2
BICMASAS DE PUEMTE GENLL, S.L. 1104) . {104
BIPUGE L, §.L. 1 1
BURGUERSTORE, S.L.U. i) i)
CAFESTORE, 5.AL. 58 58
CAPACES.L. 2 2
CAVOSA OBRAS Y PROYECTOS, S.A. {257} {3571
ClA. ENERGETICA DE LA RODA, 5.0, 4 114}
CIA.ENERG.PUENTE DEL CBSPO, §.L. ms) {115}
COMP.ENERGETICA DE PATA DE MULG, S.L. i63) - 163)
GOMPARIA ENERG. LAS VILLAS, §.L. 2 21
EMP.MIXTA AGUAS STA.CRUZ DS TEMERIFE, §.A, 141 141
EUROCOMERCIAL, 5.A. 4 . 4
GESTION DE ENERGIA Y MERCADCS, $.L. 129} {28}
HIDROANDALUZA, §.A. {4} {4
HOSPITAL DE. NORESTE. 5.A. F 4
DEYCO, §.AM. 14 . 16
INCHISACYR. §.A. 484 . 484
INTERGAM, TRANSPOR. PZA ELPTICA, S.A. . & 4
MNERE INFRAESTRUCTURAS. S.A. 15 16
INFERCANS. DE TTES, DE MONCLOA, §.A 1 3
OBR.Y SERV. DE GALICIA Y ASTURIAS, §.A. 5 5
PRIHUR, 5.A4. {138 {135
PROSACYR OCIO, S.LU. 81 3]
$.Al. DEPURACION Y TRATAMIENTOS - SADYT {1,122 i1.122)
SACYR CONGESIONES, S.Lu. 2,851 . 2,851
TACTR CONSTRUCCION APARCAMIENTO: DACE ¥ VELARDE, 5., 2 2
SACYR CONSTRUCCHON APARCAMIENTOS PLAZA DEL MILEN'O, SLL é s
SACYR CONSTRUCCION APARCAMENTOS VIRGEN DE. ROMERO, 5.1, 24 24
SACYR CONSTRUCCION APARCAMIENTOS JUAM ESPLANDI, §.4. 30 30
SACYR CONSTRUCCION PLAZA DE LA ENCARNACION, 5.1, 1 ]
SACYR CONSTRUCCION, §.A. 448,052 448,062
SACYR GESTON DE ACTVOS, S.L. 2 2
SACYR INDUSTRIAL OPERACION Y MANT., S.L. 75 75
SACYR INDUSTRIAL, S.LU. {4 [4)
SACYR INVESTMENTS, 5.A. 25 25
SACYR SECURTES, §.A. 12 12
SACYR VALLEHERMOSO PART. MOB. S8.L.U. 55,108 . 55,108
SANTACRUCERA DE AGUAS, S.L.U. {7 b
SCRINSER. $.A. 398 398
SECADEROS DE BIOMASA. 5.L. 7 - 17
SGMAGUE AMBENTE, §.A. T 16
SOMAGLE- 3.G.P.5., 5.A. 3 3
TTO. DE RESIDUCS LA RIOJA, 5.4. 174 . 175
TUNGSTEN 8. FINX, 5.0, 18 . 10
VALLE-ERMOIO DV, PROMOCIOHN, $.A.U. tH {1
VALORZA AGUA, SL, 567 . 567
VALORIZA CENTRO ESPECIAL DE EMPLEC, S.L.U. ! - 1
YALORIZA CONSER.DE INFRA., 5.A.U. 167 - 167
VALORIZA FACILTIES, S.AU. {165; HELH
VALORIZA GESTION, $.A.U. 86,899 66,899
VALORIZA MIMERIA, S.L.U. 71 1 71
VALORIZA RENOVABLES, §.L. g = ®
VALORIZA SERVIGIOS A LA DEPENDENCIA, §.1. 121 - 121}
VALORIZA SERVICIOS MEDIQAMB ENTALES, S.A. {82 - 152
VALORIZA SERVICIOS SQOCIO SAHTARICS, 5.L. (4} - {4;
frade payables/payable to suppliers 242 Y44 - 242,744
5.A.. DEPURACION Y TRATAMIENTOS - SADYT 5] 0
SACYR CHILE, S.A. 194,062 194,062
SACYR CONSTRUCCION, 5.A.U. 48,560 . 48,560
SOMAGAUE, 5.G.P.S,, 5.A 145 - 145
VALOLIZA FACILTES, $.A 166 - 166
VALORIZA GESTION, 5.4, 2 2
VALORIZA AGUA, 8.0, | 1
TOTAL CURRENT PAYABLES BALANCES 35, 3l 8359545
Sacyr, S.A.
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18.Remuneration and other benefits of directors and senior management

2015
In 2015, the following changes were made to the Board of Directors;
e  On 11 June 2015, Ms. Isabel Martin Castelld was appointed as an independent director.
« Mr. Diogo Alves Diniz Vaz Guedes left his post as proprietary director on 11 June 2015,
The remuneration agreed by the Board for 2015 was as follows:
- For Board members: 59,940 euros gross per year.
- For members of the Executive Committee: 39,9260 euros gross per year.

- For members of the Audit Committee or Appointments and Remuneration Committee; 19,980 euros gross
per year,

There follows an itemised breakdown of the remuneration earned at year-end 2015;

Evlaw-thipuraled omolvmens

Manuel Manrique Cecilia 59,940.00 99.900.00
Demelrio Carceller Arce 59,94C.00 29,950.00 19,980.00 119,880.00
Matias Cortés Dominguez 59.940.00 9,790.00 69,930.00
Francitco Javier Adraner Biosca 5%,940.00 59,940.00
tsapel Martin Castello 29.970.00 2.9%0.0C 9.990.00 49,950,00
Juan M® Aguite Conzalo 59,74C.00 19.980.00 79,9200
Augusto Delkader Teig 59.94C.00 9.990.00 9.990.00 79.920.00
Raimundo 3aroia Tiew 59.940.00 9,970.00 69.930.00
Diogo Alves Diniz Vaz Suedes 29,970.00 9.990.00 39,960.00
Prilou, §.L. [JM .Loureda Montifdni 59.940.00 37,260.00 19.980.00 11%.886.00
For Prilomi, S.L. J M woureda Ldpez 59,94C.00 59,940.00
Grupo Satocdn Desarrolles, 5.L. {Juan Miguel Sanvoan Jover 69,940,006 19.980.00 72.920.00
8eta Asociados, §.L. {José del Pitar Momeno Coreters; 59,940,080 59,940,00
Grupo Corporativo Fuertes, 8.L. | Tornds Fuertes Fernéandez; §9.740.00 19.980.00 79.920.00
Cymofag, $... [Gorzalo Manrique Sabatel} 59,940.00 &2.940.00
11955000

The remuneration accruing in 2015 o members of the Board and senior management at the Company, by
items, was as follows:

Floating rate Life insurance [JF SMsion savings
Eures plan

Manuel Manrique Cecilia 140420000  1.390.158,00 8.210,16 37142300 317399116
Senior management 2.306.692,62 868.568,05 50.525,88 000  3.225.806,55

In 2015 there were changes to the number of members and persons forming part of senior management,
which is considered to include executives reporting directly to the Company's Executive Chairman,
incorporating the CEOs of the Parent's direct subsidiaries and the Group's Managing Directors, including the
internal auditor.

In 2015, the amount of pension rights accumulated by the Chairman of the Board of Directors amounted to
1,451 thousand eurocs.
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The Chairman of the Board of Directors is enfifled to receive termination benefits in the event of dismissal on
grounds other than breach of duty by the director or resignation for reasons beyond fhe control of the
director, consisting of a total gross amount equal t¢ 2.5 times the sum of the fixed remuneration and the
variable remuneration received during the year immediately prior to that in which the scenario that gave rise
to the termination occurred. Similarly, a non-competition obligation is established for a period of two years
following the date on which the employment contract is terminated for reasons other than retirement, death
or disability, or dismissal for reqsons attributable to the director. As economic compensation for this obligation,
the director will receive 1.5 times the fixed remuneration received over the twelve months prior 1o the date
on which the employment contract is terminated, distributed pro rata on a monthly basis over the two years
of the term of the agreement.

At 31 December 2015, one member of senicr management had indemnity or golden parachute clauses.

No loans were granted to senior management in 2015,

The detaill of balances outstanding and amounts repaid by the Company's directors and senior

management in 2015 was as follows:
XD |
(T TR e [E T i e pad
S VS

cwribor Imt1 ayeas

IEam g

Senior masagemeant

2016

There were no changes on the Board of Directors in 2016.
For 2014, the remuneration agreed by the Board was as follows:

- For Board members: 72,000 euros gross per year.

For members of the Executive Committee: 45,000 euros gross per year.
- Members of the Audit Committee: 22,000 euros gross per year.

For members of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee: 20,000 euros gross per year.
There follows an itemised breakdown of the remuneration earned at year-end 2014:

Eures REMUMERATOH 2014

tflom-tipuldbed molumants

Appand
Kemih
Lo

Manuel Morvique Cedlilia

152,100.00
Demetrio Carceller Arce 147,800.0C
Maflias Cortés Daminguaz 72.000.00
Francisco Javier Adroher Biosca ,00C, 72,0000
Juan M® Aguire Gonzalo 72,000.00 28,600.00 100, 600.00
Augusto Delkader Teig 72,000.0C 22,000.00 24.000.00 120,000.00
Raimunda Baroja Riev 72,000.00 22,50C.00 94,900.00
Isapel Matin Castella 72,000,020 22,00C.00 20,000.00 114,200.0C
Prilow, $.L. {LA Loureda sMantitdng 72,000.0C 45,000.00 20.500.00 137.000.0C
For Prilorti, ... J M Loureda Lépez 72.000.00 72.000.06

py - .
;;;;erc‘:auatooan Desartollos, $.0. {Juan Miguel Saniuan Jover] Slart date 72,000-00 22,0060 94,000.00
Beta Asociados, $.5. {José dal Pilar Moreno Camretero) 72,0000 72.000,00
Grups Coporativo Fuertes, ... [ Tomds Fuertes Femandex) 72,000,00 20,000.50 92.000.00
Cymolag. 5.L. {Gonzalo Marvique Sobatel) 72,000.0C 72.00C.00
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The remuneration, by type, received by the Company's directors and senior management in 2014 is as
follows:

Finail Floating rate “ Life inswrance
Euros

Maruel Manrique Ceclla },500,000.00 §,485,000.00 1,000,000.00 282.01 378,851.0¢ 4,344.233.01
Senlor management 2.260,623.0C B54,822.00 53.492.0C 136,733.00 331557000

Pension savings

3 760 52300 2 345 82200

"Other" relates to the extraordinary variable remuneration approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting
on 31 March 2014, for the outstanding achievement in contributing to the improvement and strengthening of
the Group's balance sheet and financial ratios through the sale of the subsidiary Testa Inmuebles en Renta,
S.A,

In 2016 there were changes fo the number of members and persons forming part of the senior management
teamn, which is considered to include managers and executives directly accountable to the Board or the
Company's CEO, considering the CEOs of the Parent's direct subsidiaries and the Group's Managing
Directors, including the internal auditor.

In 2016, the amount of pension rights accumulated by the Chaiman of the Board of Directors amounted to
1,857 thousand of euros,

The amount paid in 2016 for third-party liakility insurance premiums for damages caused by acts or omissions
by directors in exercising their position amounted 1o 652 thousand euros.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors is enfitled to recelve termination benefits in the event of dismissal on
grounds other than breach of duty by the director or resignation for reasons beyond the control of the
director, consisting of a total gross amount equal to 2.5 times the sum of the fixed remuneration and the
variable remuneration received during the year immediately prior to that in which the scenario that gave rise
to the termination occurred. Similarly, @ non-competition obligation is established for a peried of two years
following the date on which the employment contract is terminated for reasons other than retirement, death
or disability, or dismissal for reasons attributable to the director. As economic compensation for this obligation,
the director will recelve 1.5 times the fixed remuneration received over the twelve months prior fo the date
on which the employment contract is terminated, distributed pro rata on a monthly basis over the two vears
of the term of the agreement.

At 31 December 2016, one member of the senior management team had indemnity or golden parachute
clauses.

No loans were granted to senior management in 20146, There were no outstanding balances or amounts
repaid by the Company's Directors and senior management in 2014,

There follows information concerming Arficle 22% of Spain's Corporate Enterprises Act, approved by Royal
Legislative Decree 1/2010 of 2 July, in the terms of Law 31/2014 of 3 December, amending the Corporate
Enterprises Act to enhance corporate governance, for those serving as directers of the Company in 2016 and
persons associated with them in the same year, in companies engaging in an identical, similar or
complementary activity to that of the Company or its Group.

e M. Manuel Manrique Cecilia reports that in 2016 and to date he - and any persons associated with
him - has not been affected directly or indirectly by any of the scenarios of a conflict of interests
stipulated in Article 229 of the Corporate Enterprises Act.

= Mr. Demetrio Carceller Arce reports that in 2016 and to date he - and any persons associated with
him - has not been affected directly or indirectly by any of the scenarios of a conflict of interests
stipulated in Article 229 of the Corporate Enterprises Act.

e Mr. Augusto Delkader Teig reports that in 2016 and to date he - and any persons associated with him
- has not been affected directly or indirectly by any of the scenarios of a conflict of interests
stipulated in Article 229 of the Corporate Enterprises Act.
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Mr. Raimundo Baroja Rieu reports that in 2014 and to date he - and any persons associated with him -
has not been affected by any of the scenarios of a conflict of interests stipulated in Article 229 of the
Corporate Enterprises Act.

Mr. Juan Maria Aguire Gonzalo reports that in 2016 and to date he - and any persons associated
with him - has not been affected by any of the scenarios of a conflict of interests stipulated in Arficle
229 of the Corporate Enterprises Act,

Mr. Matias Cortés Dominguez reports that in 2016 and to date he - and any persons associated with
him - has not been affected directly or indirectly by any of the scenarios of a confiict of interests
stipulated in Arficle 229 of the Corporate Enterprises Act.

Prilou, S.L. reports that in 2016 and to date it - and any persons associated with it - has not been
affected directly or indirectly by any of the scenarios of a conflict of interests stipulated in Article 229
of the Corporate Enterprises Act,

Prilomi, S.L. reports that in 2016 and to date it - and any persons associated with it - has not been
affected by any of the scenarios of a conflict of interests stipulated in Article 229 of the Corporate
Enterprises Act.

Cymofag, S.L. reports that in 2014 and to date it - and any persons associated with it - has not been
offected by any of the scenarios of a confiict of interests stipulated in Article 229 of the Corporate
Enterprises Act.

Ms. Isabel Martin Castelld reports that in 20146 and to date she - and any persons associated with her -
has not been affected directly or indirectly by any of the scenarios of a conflict of interests stipulated
in Arlicle 229 of the Corporate Enterprises Act,

Mr. Francisco Javier Adroher Biosca reports that in 2016 and to date he - and any persons associgted
with him - has not been affected directly or indirectly by any of the scenarios of a conflict of interests
stipulated in Article 229 of the Corporate Enterprises Act.

Beta Asociados, S.L. reports that in 2016 and to date it is and has been, directly or indirectly -
including any persons associated with it - in the following situation of "Possible Competition" with the
Company, in the construction industry only and only in certain parts of Spain: Beta Asociados, S.L.
forms part of the Corporate Group "Altec Empresa de Construccidn y Servicios, $.A.", at which the
person representing Sacyr, 5.A. as a Director, Mr. José del Pilar Moreno Carretero, acts as Joint
Director and Controlling Shareholder. This corporate group is in a situation of "Possible Competition”,
in Spain only, and only in the “Sacyr, S.A." construction business, as it undertakes part of its activities in
the construction sector.

“Balpia, 3.A." and “C.LM Infraestructuras vy Servicios, S.L." also belong to this group of companies.
“Altyum Proyectos y Obras, S.A." does not form part of this group. A minority interest is held in this
company, which also operates in the construction sector.

Grupo Corporatfivo Fuertes, S.L. reports that in 2016 and to date, that it and its natural person
representative: (i) have only caried out transactions with the company of an ordinary nature, which
were conducted under market conditions in the terms stibulated in the Corporate Enterprises Act; {ii)
they have not used the name of the Company or declared its status as @ member of the Board of
Directors to exert unwarranted influence on private operations; {iii) they have not made use of
corporate assets, including confidential information of the Company, for private purposes; [iv) they
have not taken personal advantage of the Company's business opportunities and (v} they have not
obtained any benefits or remuneration from third parties other than the Company and its group in
association with the exercise of its post.
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In this regard, it reports that as far as it is aware, no party associated with Grupo Corporativo Fuertes,
S.L., or its natural person representative, could be understood to be aoffected by any of the situations
refemed to in sections a) to &), both inclusive, of Article 229 of the Comporate Enterprises Act, with
respect to the Company.

In connection with the scenario described in Article 229.1.f) of the Corporate Enterprises Act, Grupo
Corporativo Fuertes, S.L. carries out its own business and projects for third parties the business purpose
of which may be understood to constitute effective competition [real or potential) with the
Company at the following entities: Gerocentros Mediterrdneo, S.L., with a 42.50% stake (Director),
Ausur Servicios de la Autopista, S.A., with a 20% stake [Director), Autopista del Sureste CEA, S.A., with
a 20% stake (Director) and Autopista de la Costa Cdlida CEA, S.A., with a 7.15% stake. in the same
regard, it reports there are parties related to Grupo Corporativo Fuertes, S.L. [in the terms of Arficle
231 of the Corporate Enterprises Act) that could be carying out their own business and proiects for
third parties the business purpose of which may be understood to constitute effective competition
{redl or potential} with the Company at these entities.

+ Juan Miguel Sanjuan Jover, (representing Grupo Satccan Desarrollos, S.L. ) reports that in 2016 and to
date it - and any persons associated with it - has not been affected by any of the scenarios of a
conflict of interests stipulated in Article 229 of the Corporate Enterprises Act. It does, however, report
a possible hypothetical situation of competition vis-&-vis the Sacyr Group considering its status as
director and partner of Grupo Satocan, $.A. with a holding of 49.88%, and its status as Managing
Director and partner at Satocan, S.A. -both directly, and indirectly through Grupo Satocén, S.A- @
company operating in the construction sector in the Autonomous Community of the Canary Islands.

19.Environmental information

In 2015 and 2014, no expenses were incured to protect and improve the environment. Likewise, no
contingencies or expenses arose requiring provisions for environmental costs, and there were no
confingencies in relation to environmental protection and improvement,

20.Other information

Q) Personnel

The following was the average headcount in 2015 and 20146, by category:

e e |

CECs and executive chairmen

Other directors and managers e 19
Scienﬁﬁ?c, intellectual and suppeort technical staff and 131 17
professionals

Accounting, administrative and other office employees 58 &5
Elemeniary cccuoations

g e ———
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Also, the distribution by gender at the end of 2015 and 2016, broken down by category, is as follows:

I T
m-m
1 Z

2

5

)

&3

Directors
CECs and executive chairmen|non-director) 3 1 3
Cther directors and managers T4 4 14

Scientific, intellectual and support technical sia® and
crofassionals

Accounting, administrative and other ofiice employees 24 29 27

Eiemenic:ry occupations

e ————— ] =T =

The average number of employees in 2015 and 2016, by category, with a disability equat to or greater than
33% is as follows:

L Coeooy T o | s

scientific, intellectual and suppor technical slaif and
professionals

Accounting, administrative and other office employees 1 2

el e = — el )

b} FEees paid fo auditors

In 2016, fees for qudit services rendered by the Company's auditor or by a firm or group related thereto,
amounted to 56,181 euros (56,181 euros in 2015).

The Company’s auditors also performed other work unrelated to audit services amounting to 288 thousand
euros and 237 thousand euros in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

21.Events after the reporting period

¢ On 10 January 2017, Sacyr, via its investee Sacyr Vallehermoso Participaciones Mobiliarias, S.L.,
received a 0.335 euros per share gross dividend from the REPSOL “Flexible Dividend” programme,
generating total receivable of 17.88 million euros. Also, under this programme, it has received 495,977
new shares in Repsol, resulting from the swap of part of its pre-emptive subscription rights at a rate of
one new share for every 38 in circulation.

22.Additional note for English transiation

These financial statements were originally prepared in Spanish. In the event of ¢ discrepancy, the Spanish
language prevadils. These financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles generally
accepted in Spain. Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with generally
accepted accounting principles in Spain may not conform with generally accepted accounting principles in
other countries.
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1. ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

1.1. THE INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

2014, both at a global level and in general terms, has been characterised by an improvement in the outlook
for economic growth, thanks to the good performance of the world's major economies: United States, Japan,
Canada and the majority of the eurc area and EU countfries. Both the US Federal Reserve and the European
Central Bank, continued to provide monetary stimulus policies during the year, though the US has raised
interest rates for the second year running. On the other hand, emerging countries' economies continue to
suffer, with commodiity prices failing to recover, aside from oil, which spiked sharply compared to 2015. Qil's
recovery has led to prices beginning to rise once again, after the falls experienced in the last few years.

In 2014, the United States recorded growth of 1.6% in GDP, compared with 2.6% the year before. This
slowdown is due in part fo lower household consumption (2.7% in 2014 vs 3.2% in 2015); a fall in non-residential
fixed investment, and a reduction in national and local government spending. As expected, at the end of
the year the Fed once again raised its benchmark rate by a quarter of one point, to the range of 0.50%-
0.75%. on the back of the recovery in prices and employment levels during the year. At least three interest
rate rises are forecast for 2017. With regard to employment, 2016 was another good year, with 2.14 milion
new jobs created, reducing unemployment from 5% in 2015 to 4.7%, its lowest rate for nine years. In terms of
inflation, govermment figures show that 2014 closed with an Increase of 2.1%, compared to 0.7% the previous
year, largely due to the major increase of 5.4% in energy prices in the year.

Turning to Ching, according to the government's own data, GDP rose by 6.7% in 2016, down 0.2% on 2015,
and the lowest rate in the last 25 years. The steady downtum in the second-largest global economy has been
confirmed for the third year running, as the export-based growth model runs out of steam. By sector, the
growth of 7.8% in Services, 6.1% in Industry and 3.3% in Primary, all stood out. It should be noted that the
Service sector now accounts for over 50% of the Chinese economy, which reflects the shift away from the
production of low-cost goods towards domestic consumption.

The economic performance of euro area countries was also very uneven in 2016. Although Eurostat has not
published its definitive GDP figures, and in many cases the data we have is provisional, we can confirm that
the eurc zone as a whole grew 1.7%, compared with 1.6% the previous year, nearing pre-crisis levels but still
much lower than the world's other economic powers. By country, the highest growth rates were as follows:
Slovenia (+3.6%); Spain and Lithuania [+3.0%); Slovakia (+2.9%); Estonia and Cyprus {+2.8%); Netherands
{+2.5%); Lthuonia (+2.2%); Portugal [+2.0%) Germany and Austria (+1.8%); Finland (+1.3%); France and
Belgium (+1.2%) and ltaly {+1.0%). Meanwhile, only one country suffered a fall in GDP: Greece {-1.1%). In the
European Union as a whole, however, there was growth of 1.9% in the year, compared to 1.8% in 2015, with
the following increcses of particular note: Romania (+4.8%): Croatia (+3.5%); Bulgaria (+3.4%}); Poland (+3.1%);
Sweden (+2.3%); United Kingdom ({+2.0%); Denmark and Czech Republic (+1.9%) and Hungary {+1.5%)}. The
European Central Bank has continued to pursue its active liquidity policies, by systematically purchasing the
public debt of peripheral countries, as well as through various liquidity auctions with the aim of stabilising
lending in the economy. With regard to the economic forecasts for future years, the European Commission
expects growth of 1.6% in the euroc area in 2017 and of 1.8% in 2018, while growth of 1.8% is expected for the
Eurcpean Unlon as @ whole in both years. The recovery continued to gain ground in Europe thanks to the
increase in domestic demand and exports, as a result of the depreciation in the euro and improved
competitiveness. However, Europe's weaknesses over the next few years will be: the uncertdinty deriving from
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the possible result of upcoming elections in a number of European countries, such as France, Gemany and
[taly, and the development of the Brexit negotiations, for the possible disruption to trade that might result.

Year-on-year inflation in the euro areaq, according to data provided by Eurcstat, was 1.1% in 2016, compared
to 0.2% the previous yvear, This major rise was due fo higher energy prices, especially in the last quarter of
2016. Brent crude prices rose sharply, from 37 US dollars at the start of the year to almost 57 US dollars by the
end of December, an increase of 52.4%. Underlying inflation {i.e. excluding the price of energy and fresh
food) stood at 0.9% in the euro areq, the same as in the previous year. The outlook for 2017, once QPEC cuts
output, as agreed {for the first fime since 2008) in its meeting in November, it is likely that oil will continue its
rise and reach 60 US dollars a barrel. As a result of this, the spectre of deflation appears to have disappeared,
for which reason the ECB may decide to remove part of the monetary stimulus it has maintained over the last
few years.

1.2.- THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT IN SPAIN.

According to data from the Bank of Spain, the Spanish economy, measured in terms of GDP, grew by 3.2% in
2016, the same figure as recorded the previous year. This is the third year of positive growth, following six years
of contraction. By sector, Services and Agriculture, livestock and fisheries stand out, with both experiencing a
year-on-year increase of 3.4%. Construction saw growth of 2.5% and Industry 2.4%. For the third year in a row,
domestic demand grew (2.8%), thanks once again to the boost from household consumption, the favourable
performance of the labour market and the fall in the cost of borrowing for families. In terms of the trade
balance, 2016 set a new record for the export of goods, which reduced the trade deficit by 22.4%, down to
18,754 million euros. Thanks to the competitiveness of our economy, and the depreciation of the euro against
the US dollar, exports rose by 1.7% to 254,530 million euros, whilst imports fell by 0.4% to 273,284 milion euros.
The sectors which performed paricularly well were Capital goods [20.3% of total exports), Vehicles {17.7%)
and Food, beverages and tobacco industry {16.9%). 66.3% of Spanish goods were exported within the EU.
Additiondlly, according to data provided by the Ministry of Industry, Energy, Tourism and Digital Agenda, in
2016, and for the fifth year running, Spain saw a record number of overseas visitors, with 75.3 million tourists
visiting the country, 9.9% more than in 2015. Forecasts suggest that the total amount spent by these visitors
was 77,000 millon euros, up 8% on the previous year, with the average spend per tourist standing at 1,023
euros, a year-on-year increase of 3.5% .

The European Commission’s forecasts for Spain in 2017 and 2018 are fairly encouraging in all key components:
GDP growth, job creation and unemployment figures. In 2017, it expects an increase of 2.3% in GDP, and of
2.1% in 2018, mainly due to increased domestic demand as a result of employment growth. Exports should
also continue to grow thanks to the improved compefitiveness of the Spanish economy. As for
vnemployment, rates of around 17.7% and 16% are expected in 2017 and 2018, respectively,

As regards the labour market, according to data published by the Spanish National Institute of Statistics (INE),
the Labour Force Survey {LFS) refiects an increase of 413,900 jobs last year, 2.29% more than in 2015, with
growth in all sectors, especidlly Services (+240,000) and Industrial {+115,700). Unemployment ended the year
at 18.63% of the active population, compared to 20.9% the previous year. With regard to the social security
system, 2016 saw an average number of 17.85 milion employees registered, an improvement of more than
540,655 compared to the previous year, according to figures provided by the Department of Social Security,
the largest rise since 2006. Under the General Social Security Regime, which experienced a year-on-year
increase of 3.64%, all sectors of activity performed well, though there was a small decline in the number of
employees registered in the category of Special Scheme for Domestic Workers. The Special Regime for Self-
Employed Persons also performed well during the year, and closed with an average of 3.19 million workers
registered, 0.83% more than in 2015.

Turning to prices, according to INE inflation in Spain for 2016 was 1.6% compared to 0.0% in 2015. The sectors
with the biggest price rises in the general index were as follows: Transport (+4.7%), due to the sharp increase in
the price of fuels and lubricants in December; Housing (+0.8%)due to the rise in electricity prices; Feod and
non-alcoholic beverages (+0.8%) and Leisure and Culture (+0.5%). All sectors experienced year-on-year
increases, except for Medicine, which experienced a slight fall [-0.1%). Underlying inflation, excluding fresh
food and energy products, stood at 1.0%, down against the 0.9% observed the previous year.

Spain's main stock index, the IBEX-35, ended with losses for the second year running. The last trading session of
the year closed at ,352.10 points, a loss in the year of 2.01%. The index was down 7.06% in 2015,
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According to data published by the Spanish Association of Construction Companies [SEQPAN) public tenders
totalled 9,323.63 milion euros of real investment, a slight year-on-year increase of 1.6%. Of this total, local
government accounted for 3,298.2 million euros; central government for 3,130.83 million euros, with the 914.44
milion euros invested by the Directorate General for Roads, the 614.2 milion euros by Port Authorities, the
538.78 miillion euros invested by AENA and the 244.1 milion euros by ADIF (including High Speed) being of
particular note, Regional governments invested a total of 2,894.62 milllion euros.

At the date of preparing this Management Report, the govemment budgets for 2017 have still to be approved,
for which reason that of 2016 has been automatically extended. In this budget, state investment amounted to
10,129 million euros, of which over half (5,440 milion euros) was in railways. Spain's high-speed "AVE" rail system
will account for 3,679 million euros of this investment. The northeast comidor that will link Madrid with Galicia
receives investment of 1,160 milion eurcs, the Mediterranean coridor receives 1,343 milion euros and the high
speed link to the north 1,018 million euros. 2,383 million euros is assigned to public roads, of which 1,174 million
suros comesponds to the consiruction of new roads and 1,058 million euros to maintenance. 1,000 milion euros
is earmarked for ports and maritime security, with 875 million euros of this going to national perts. The Ministry of
Public Works has dllocated a 609 million euro package to the aifline sector.

Despite the measures taken by Spanish public authorities to adjust and contain spending, the Ministry of
Economic Development is still implementing the new Infrastructure, Transport and Housing Plan ("PITVIY)
infroduced at the end of 2012, which replaced the Strategic Infrastructure and Transport Plan ("PEIT') and the
Strategic Infrastructure Plan {"PEI"}. The new plan is expected o remain in place until 2024.

Depending on the macroeconomic scenario in Spain, the total sum of investiment earmarked in the "PITVI"
Plan ranges between 0.89% and 0.94% of GDP up to 2024,

Of the total amount planned, approximately $0% is to be dllocated to fransport policies and 10% to housing.
Of the former, 52,403 milion euros will be allocated to roads, including 18,668 milion euros for the
construction of 3,500 km of new high-capacity routes, with o further 1,265 million euros earmarked for the
expansion of existing roads. A 25,000 million euro package is to be dllocated to Spain's high-speed "AVE" rail
system. The bulk of this amount will be used for the connection to Galicia (8,517 milion euros} and for the
Basque "Y" {4,323 million euros), which will join the three capitals of the region. The other ftagship projects will
be the AVE to Badajoz, with 2,651 million euros, and the connection to Asturias, with another 1,719 milion
euros. Other noteworthy interventions include national ports, with 2,000 milion euros, and modermisation of
cenventional railway transport, with 1,310 million euros.

Despite constantly calling for austerity, European authorities are aware of the importance of developing
Europe-wide infrasiructure in the new world economic order. The European Commission work group created
for this purpose therefore continues to implement a backlog of projects to be caried out in the short and
medium term focusing on key sectors to drive compefition and potential growth in the European Union,
especially with regard to research and development, the digital economy, energy and transport
infrastructure, social infrastruciure and the environment.

Among other actions, the new actions outlined in the European rail transport plan are taken into
consideration. Spain, with five comdors crossing the enfire country, is to be one of the main beneficiares. The
network, which will criss-cross the country's temitory, should be completed before 2030, and Is expected fo
receive a total investment of 49,800 million euros, of which at least 10% wili be covered with EU funds. The
Central Comdor will link Algeciras to France through the centre of the peninsula; the Atlantic-Mediterranean
Corridor will run from Lisbon to Valencia; a branch of the coridor will run from Portugal to France, crossing the
Castille plateau and the Basque Country; the Mediterranean Cormridor will link Algeciras to Murcia, Valencia,
Catdlonia and the French border; and another coridor will run from the Cantabrian Sea to the
Mediterranean, linking Bilbao to Valencia and passing through Pamplona and Zarageza.

2. PERFORMANCE OF SACYR, S.A,

Seme of the most significant events that took place during the year are as follows:

a) Panama Canal
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On 31 May 2016, the GUPC consortium, led by Sacyr, completed the works to design and construct the third
set of locks on the Panama Canal, a basic component of the Panama Canal expansion programme; the
most ambitious engineering feat of the twenty-first century and one of the biggest challenges everin terms of
infrastructure, placing Sacyr atf the very forefront of the civil engineering world.

The new Panama Canal was officially inaugurated and opened for business on 26 June 2016, with the
passing through of the first "post-panamax” ship, i.e. larger vessels than those able to use the old Canal. The
event was attended by 2,400 guests from 62 intermational delegations, including Emeritus King of Spain, Juan
Carlos | and numerous presidents, vice-presidents and prime ministers from a multitude of countries and
international crganisations.

There is no doubt that this work has been a great triumph of technology and innovation, and has involved
the creation of a new interoceanic thoroughfare; one where the world record shipping foll has been
charged. All of this has been possible, thanks to the efforts, high quality and diligent work of Sacyr and the
other shareholders in GUPC, which has made them one of the construction companies with the greatest
international projection.

The GUPC consortium is currently involved in maintenance of the new Canal, in compliance with its contract.

The claims submitted by the consortium in relation to the cost overruns on the project are awaiting the ruling
of the DAB (Dispute Adjudication Board), an independent technical body established within the framework
of the agreement between Grupo Unidos por el Canal (GUPC) and the ACP (Panama Canal Authorities),
and, ulfimately, the final ruling on all the claims by the ICC's Arbitration Court in Miami. This is a long and
complex process, which is not expected to be concluded in the near future.

b) Stake in Repsol

In 2014, its investee, Sacyr Vallehermoso Participaciones Mobiliarias, 5.L.U., made an early repayment of 885
million euros on the debt associated with its stake in the oil company, reducing, at that date, the outstanding
loan principal to 76% million euros.

This early repayment was possible thanks to the 317 million euros received in June from the final part of the
sale of Testa to Merlin Properties; the 533 milion eurcs obtained from the two derivative instruments on 50
million Repsol shares {40% of the stake), aranged on 4 October and 14 December; and the dividends
received during the year from the Repsol stake.

The financial derivatives consist of prepaid forward contracts with an underlying asset of 20 and 30 million
Repsol shares, with the voting rights of the shares being maintained. The proceeds from these prepaid
forward contracts is recognised under the heading "Other hedged financial debt" on the liability side of the
balance sheet. At the same time, Call Spread contracts were also signed with the same counterparties,
enabling, until their maturity and through payment of a premium, any potential increase in the Repsol shares
to be recovered, up fo a certain price. This hedge enables Sacyr to eliminate the risk of fluctuations in the
fracing price of Repsol below a threshold of 10.70 euros/share and 11.90 euros/share for 20 million and 30
million shares, respeciively.

Also, these financial instruments make it possible to remove risks derived from market price variations in the
shares and will allow Sacyr to benefit from the potential for increase of Repsol shares,

In 2016, the Company, through its investee, Sacyr Vallehermoso Participaciones Mobiliarias, S.L., received

dividends from Repsol for 92.63 million euros {a dividend on account of 2015 profit, for 56.95 million euros, at
the beginning of January, and another final dividend of 35.68 million eurcs, at the beginning of July).

c) Redemption of converfible bond issue
In April 2016, the Company fully redeemed the issue of convertible and exchangeable bonds for an inifial

nominal amount of 200 million euros, issved on 31 March 2011 and maturing on 1 May 2014,

d) Testa
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As envisaged in the investment agreement of 8 June 2015 between the Company and Merlin Properties, the
final transfer of shares of Testa Inmuebles en Renta, Socimi, S.A. took place on 20 June 2016. Specifically, this
final phase of the transaction involved the sale of a total of 34,810,520 Testa shares for 317 million eures.
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e) Euro Commercial Paper (ECP) programme

On 14 April 2014, the Company registered an ECP programme at the Irish Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
authorisation given thereto by the General Shareholders’ Meetfing held on 12 June 2014. Through this
programme, the Company intends to carry out, for one year from the current date, partial issues of notes,
with a maturity of between 1 and 364 days from the closing date of each issue. The global maximum amount
of the programme is limited to 300 million euros

3.- REPSOL, S.A.

In 2016, the Company remained a core shareholder in Repsol, S.A., through its investee Sacyr Vallehermoso
Participaciones Mobiliarias, S.L.

Repsol is the leading company in its sector in Spain and one of the world's leading energy groups, with a
strong presence in geo-politically stable countries (OECD).

Repsol also holds a 20.083% stake in the benchmark energy company Gas Natural SDG, $.A., having sold a
10% stake in the company to GIP Canary $.A R.L. during the year for 1,201.31 million euros, obtaining a capital
gain of 246 million euros.

In 2016, Repscl, S.A. reported total revenue of 34,689 million euros, with athibutable consolidated profit of
1,736 million euros (-1,398 million euros in 2015), thanks to the flexibility of its businesses, the acquisition of
Talisman and the efficiency programmes undertaken by the company to counteract the fall in oil prices in
the first part of the past year. Adjusted net profit (stipping out extraordinaries and inventory effects) was
1,922 million euros, an increase of 4% on 2015,

EBITDA rose by 18% year-on-year, to 5224 million euros.
Net debt was reduced to 8,144 million euros, down 32% on 2015,

During the year, Repsol YPF, 3.A. pdid a final gross dividend of 0.758 euros per share {0.446 euros as an inferim
dividend against 2015 profit and 0.292 euros as a final dividend for that year). Sacyr Vallehermoso
Participaciones Mobiliarias, 3.L.U."'s share of the dividend amounted o $2.43 million euros.

Repsol, $.A. 1s listed on Spain's IBEX-35 index, as well as on the leading index in the United States. At year-end
2016, the Company's share price stood at 13.42 euros {up 32.61% on 2015 and its market cap. was 19,4668.94
million euros. It was one of the biggest annual gains in both the IBEX-35 and the European oil and gas sector.

4, RiISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company is exposed to a number of risks and uncertainties. The main financial risks are as follows:

¢ Credit risk: Note 7 to the financial statements detalls the breakdown of Company debt, together
with the applicable interest rate and maturity dates. The Company's accounts receivables relate
mainly to accounts refundable from the tax authorities and fransactions with Group companies. Most
of Group company income is received directly from State, autonomous community and local
governments in Spain. Therefore, the credit risk is practically non-existent, and on occasions in which
delays or default are incurred, they are compensated with the respective late-payment interest, in
accordance with the Public Authority Contracts Law. Each business unit performs an assessment prior
to arangement which includes a solvency study. During the life of its contracts, it monitors its
receivables on an ongoing basis, reviewing recoverable amounts and recognising impairments s
required.

The credit risk of the balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the helding
company's Cash department. Cash surpluses are invested in low-risk liquid instruments at highly
solvent entities.
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Liquidity risk: The Company draws up annual cash budgets and monthly forecasts fwith breakdowns
and daily updates} to manage its liquidity risk and meet its funding needs. Liquidity risk derives from
investment commitments for 2017 based on business plans that require additional financing, and
refinancing of short-term borrowings. However, all these risks are mitigated by the following factors:

{i} The generation of recuming cash from businesses in which the Group bases Its
activity;

{ii) The obtainment of new external financing lines, be it via the banks or through the
issuance of marketable securifies, based on long-term business plans of the
Company continuing to be the natural vehicle to obtain liquidity, but both access
and the financial conditions have been severely fightened as a result of the crisis;

(i) The simple bond issue for 30 million euros and maturing in 2023;

(iv) Renewal of curent bormowings or the repayment thereof with cash surpluses
generated;
(v} The ECP promissory note issue progromme for up to 300 milion euros and maturing

within one year.

(i} For remaining maturities in 2017 and subsequent years, based on negofiations with
the financlal institutions, the Company’s directors are convinced that the loans and
credit facilities wilt be renewed at longer term.

{vii) Sale of non-strategic assets.
At the date of authorisation for issue of these financial statements and on the basis of the 2017 cash

flow projections, the Company considers it will be fully able to meet its commitments with suppliers,
employees and public admiinistrations, taking inte account that indicated above.

Interest rate risk: At 2016 year-end, based on the yield curve projections, the Company does not
expect significant fluctuations in Interest rates that may affect its financial obligations.

Occaslonal short-term cash surpluses in all subsidiaries are invested in highly liquid risk-free deposits,
provided this is in line with best financial management practices.

Other market risks to which the Company is exposed through its investees include:

-

Risks associated with intemational expansion: This risk arises from the Group's ongoing expansion into
new markets. Before making new investments, the Group conducts exhaustive and detailed analyses
of the target markets. These surveys comprise on-site research that can span several years,

Regulatory risk: Group companies must comply with both general and sector-specific regulations
(legal, accounting, environmental, employment, tax, data protection efc.). Changes in these
regulations could either benefit or adversely affect the Group’s businesses.

Other risks to which the Company is exposed through its investees include:

Environmental risks
Risks of damages caused by construction work
Risks associated with workplace health and safefy;

Risks of loss of assefts.

The Company has implemented control systems to adequately identify, quantify, evaluate and remedy all
these risks, so as to minimise or eliminate the consequences.
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5. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE-SHEET DATE

Events after the reporting date are detdiled in the notes to these separate financial statements.

&. R&D ACTIVITIES

Innovation, technology, research and development are key factors that have contributed to the business
success of the Company and its investees. This commitment is evident through the definition and disclosure of
this policy and by assigning the human and technical resources necessary to implement such policy.

The idecs later developed by the innovation departments of the Group companies germinate in this
environment, thereby allowing them to subsequently improve their materials, systems, processes and,
therefore, their results.

In 2016, the Sacyr Group consolidated its backlog of 12 new R&D projects with extemnal recognition of this
activity by obtaining grants, loans and/or tax credits from various official bodies.

Although none can be considered significant, due to their small budget as a part of fotal revenues, the
Group's R&D activities involved all business areas: Construction, Concessions, Services and Industrial.

7. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF TREASURY SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the share capital of Sacyr, S.A. was fully subscribed and padid. Share caopital was
composed of 517,430,971 shares with a par value of 1 euro each. There is only one class and series of shares,
and all shares carry the same rights.

At year-end 2016, the Company's market capitalisation stood at 1,148.7 million euros. Share performance on
the continuous market is as follows:

SHARE PRICE IN 2018

Ne of shares admilted ior trading 817,430,991
Trading volume (thousand: of eurcs) 2,235,798
Trading days 257
Closing price 2015 {euros) 1,814
Closing price 2014 [euros) 2.220
High {on 20/12/16) {euros} 2.367
Low {on 24/06/2016} {euros) 1.174
Average weighted share price (euros) 1767
Average daily trading vol. in® of shares) 5,097,244
Liguidity (shores traded/capial) 2.53

At year-end 2016, the share price of Sacyr, S.A. was 2.22 euros per share, compared to 1.814 euros in the
previous year. The share price reached its infraday high of 2.367 euros on 20 December, and its daily closing
high of 2.34 euros on the same day. The infraday day low was 1.174 euros, on 24 June, and the minimum
ddaily close was 1.294 euros per share, on 11 February.

Sacyr, S.A.'s share price marked an uneven performance against the IBEX-35, the IBEX Medium Cap, the
General Index and the National Construction Index. Sacyr's shares were more volatile than the benchmark
indices, with a weighted average fluctuation of 1.707 euros per share. The average daily frading volume was
over 5.09 million shares, for a total of 2,235 million euros for the year.

Sacyr, S.A.
Financial Statements and Management 2016. 74 of 79



SACYR, S.A.
NOTES TO THE 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STOCK MARKET INFCRMATION | 2016 | .

Share pnice ;euros)

High 2367 4.279
Low 1.174 1.782
Method 1.767 3380
Year-end 2.220 1.814
Average daily trading vol. {n® of shares) 5,097,246 6,667,374
Annual trading volume {thousands of euros] 2,235,798 5,427,009
N° of shares admitted for frading ot vear-end 517,430,991 517,430,991
Market capitalisation {thousand: of euros) 1,148,897 938,620

At 31 December 2016, the Company held 4,068,302 treasury shares, equivalent to 1.1728% of its share capital.
At the average exchange rate, the price paid was 6.84 per shars.

Throughout 2016, the Company maintained the liquidity agreement it entered into on 29 March 2012 with
GVC Gaesco Bolsa, 8.V., S.A. pursuant to CNMYV Circular 3/2007, of 19 December.

Between 1 January and 31 December 2016, 76,988,618 and 75,819,116 Sacyr shares were bought and
disposed of, respectively.

At 31 December 2016, Sacyr was custodian of 1,601 Sacyr shares, which were those that were not subscribed
in the bonus issue of 2015,

Sacyr will be the legal custodian of these securities in the three years established by law, at the end of which,
and pursuant to Article 59 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, it will sell and deposit the resulting
amount, together with the dividend rights received during this entire period, in the General Deposit Fund,
where it will be available to its shareholders.

At the 2016 balance sheet date, the Sacyr share price was 2.220 euros, 22.38% lower than at the prior year
close {1.814 euros per share).

8. AVERAGE PERIOD OF PAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS

In 2016, the average period of payment to suppliers for Sacyr, S.A. was 65.20 days. The Company is working
together with its suppliers to optimise the issuing and receipt of invoices in due time and form.
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STATEMENT CERTIFYING SIGNATURES:

In certification that the Board of Directors of Sacyr, S.A., at its meeting on 30 March 2017, authorised for issue,
in accordance with Article 253 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, the Company's 2016 financial
statements (balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, and
notes to the financial statements) and the Company's management report, which will be submitted for
approval at the Company's General Sharehelders' Meeting. These documents are reproduced in the
preceding pages numbered consecutively from first to last, and are stamped and signed by the Secretary to
the Board. Pursuant to Article 8.1.b) of Royal Decree 1362/07, of 19 October, the Board of Directors hereby
states that to the best of its knowledge and belief, the above-mentioned documents were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting principles and present a true and fair view of the Company's
financial position and eamings, and that the management report provides a true and fair analysis of the
performance and eamings obtained, as well as of the Company's position, along with a description of the
main risks and uncertainties these face.

In compliance with Article 253 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act, and, as evidence of their conformity
with the Company's financial statements and management report for 2014, the directors of Sacyr, S.A.
hereby lend their signatures below.

ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT:

Also, the undersigned, as directors of the Company, state that the accounts underlying these financial
statements contain no items of environmental significance that should be included in the notes to the
financial statements under the third part of the Spanish General Accounting Plan (Royal Decree 1514/2007,
of 16 November).

In Madrid, at 30 March 2017.

Manuel Manrique Cecilia Demetrio Carceller Arce
Chairman and CEQC Vice-Chairman
Jose Manuel Loureda Mantifidn Isabel Martin Castelld
Prilou, S.L. Direclor
Director
Matlas Cortes Dominguez Jose Manue! Loureda Lépez
Director Prilorni, S.L.
Director
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Gonzalo Manrique Sabatei
Cymofag. S.L.
Director

Javier Adroher Riosca
Director

Juan Miguel Sanjuan Jover

Giupo Safocan Desarrollos, §.A.

Direcfor

Tomds Fuertes Femandez

Grupo Comporativo Fuerles, S.1.
Director

José Moreno Carretero
Betfa Asociados, §.1.
Director

Raimundo Baroja Rieu
Director

Juan Marla Aguirre Gonzalo
Director

Augusto Delkader Teig
Director

As Secretary, | hereby certify, in Madrid, and
pursuant to arlicle 11.3 y 3 of RD 1362/07, of

19 October, the transparency of the above
information.

Hena Otero-Novas Miranda
Secretary of the Board

Sacyr, S.A.
Financial Statements and Management 2016. 79 of 79






